
 

AGENDA 

 
 



 

1 

 

 CITY OF HOPEWELL 
Hopewell, Virginia 23860 

 

CITY COUNCIL 
Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor, Ward #7 

Jasmine E. Gore, Vice Mayor, Ward #4 
Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Councilor, Ward #1 

Arlene Holloway, Councilor, Ward #2 
Anthony J. Zevgolis, Councilor, Ward #3 

Janice Denton, Councilor, Ward #5 
Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor, Ward #6 

 
John M. Altman, Jr., City Manager 

Stefan M. Calos, City Attorney 
Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk 

 

AGENDA 
 

PHONE: 541-2249 
FAX: 541-2248 

 

e-mail: info@hopewellva.gov 
www.hopewellva.gov 

rarrington@hopewellva.gov 

 Date: June 12, 2018 MUNICIPAL BUILDING Closed Meeting:  6:30 p.m. 

 Work Session: 7:00 p.m. 
Regular Meeting: 7:30 p.m. 

 

OPEN MEETING 

 

6:30 p.m. Call to order, roll call, and welcome to visitors 

 

MOTION: To go into closed meeting for (1) discussion and consideration of prospective 

candidates for employment (city attorney); (2) discussion, consideration, and interview 

of specific appointees of city council (CPMT, Water Renewal, EDA, HRHA); (3) 

consultation with legal counsel and briefings by staff members or consultants pertaining 

to actual or probable litigation, where such consultation or briefing in open meeting 

would adversely affect the negotiating or litigating posture of city council (Parcel ID No. 

066-0870, McDonald’s); and (4) consultation with legal counsel employed or retained by 

city council related thereto and regarding specific legal matters requiring the provision 

of legal advice by such counsel, in accordance with Virginia Code § 2.2-3711 (A) (1) [two 

items], (7), and (8), respectively. 

 

 Roll Call  

CLOSED MEETING 

 

RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO VIRGINIA CODE § 2.2-3712 (D): Were only public business 

matters (1) lawfully exempted from open-meeting requirements and (2) identified in the closed-

meeting motion discussed in closed meeting? 

 

Roll Call 

 

MOTION: To amend/adopt agenda 

 

Roll Call 

  

mailto:info@hopewellva.gov
http://www.hopewellva.gov/


 

2 

 

WORK SESSION 

 

WS-1 Request from the Hopewell Redevelopment and Housing Authority to rezone property 

 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

7:30 p.m.   Call to order, roll call, and welcome to visitors 

 

Prayer by Chaplain Judy Bailey of John Randolph Pastoral Care, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance 

to the Flag of the United States of America led by Councilor Zevgolis. 

 

Consent Agenda 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by Council and will be approved 

or received by one motion in the form listed. Items may be removed from the Consent Agenda for 

discussion under the regular agenda at the request of any Councilor. 

 

C-1 Minutes:   

C-2 Pending List:  attached 

C-3 Routine Approval of Work Sessions:  

C-4 Personnel Change Report & Financial Report:  Implementation Plan Progress Report  

C-5 Ordinances on Second & Final Reading:   

C-6 Routine Grant Approval: Recreation and Parks Matching Funds for Woodlawn Park Design 

and Equipment 

C-7 Public Hearing Announcement: 6-26-18 - CDBG Budget; 7-10-18 - HRHA Rezoning; 

Rezoning of portion of West Broadway; Conditional Use Permit 

C-8 Information for Council Review: Election Notice: HRHA 5-23-18; Minutes: EDA 4-2-18 

C-9 Resolutions/Proclamations/Presentations:  

C-10 Additional Announcements:  

 

Public Hearings 

CITY CLERK: All persons addressing Council shall approach the microphone, give name and, if 

they reside in Hopewell, their ward number, and limit comments to five minutes. No person shall be 

permitted to address Council a second time until all others have been heard, and no one may speak 

more than twice on any subject in any one meeting. All remarks shall be addressed to Council as a 

body, any questions must be asked through the mayor only, and there shall be no discussion without 

permission of the mayor. Any person who makes personal, impertinent, abusive, or slanderous 

statements, or incites disorderly conduct in Council Chambers may be barred by the mayor from 

further audience before Council, and removed, subject to appeal to a majority of Council. (See Rules 

405 and 406) 

 

PH-1 Public Hearing on Zoning Ordinance Amendment to Article VIII, Planned 

Developments (PUD). 

 

ISSUE: The current Downtown Central Business (B-1) Zoning District regulations in Article 

IX of the Hopewell Zoning Ordinance does not allow for the development of a master planned 

site in downtown. 

 



 

3 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  The Planning Commission recommends that Council resolve to 

adopt the proposed amendment to Article VIII, Sections A, B, C, E, G and H. 

 

MOTION:            

 

             

 Roll Call 

 

 

PH-2 Spot Blight 

 

ISSUE: . Staff has reviewed several properties that qualify for demolition, rehabilitation, 

and/or acquisition through the Spot Blight ordinance. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that Council resolve to approve the 

demolition of the selected properties. 

 

MOTION:            

 

             

 Roll Call 

 

 

PH-3 School Board Appointment 

 

ISSUE: For the purpose of receiving public comments regarding nominees or applicants to the 

school board (Greg Cuffey) for one position, beginning July 1, 2018 and ending June 30, 2023 

pursuant to VA. Code § 22.1-29.1 (Public hearing before appointment of School Board 

members). 

 

MOTION:            

 

             

 Roll Call 

 

 

Communications from Citizens 

CITY CLERK: A Communications from Citizens period, limited in total time to 30 minutes, is part 

of the Order of Business at each regular Council meeting. All persons addressing Council shall 

approach the microphone, give name and, if they reside in Hopewell, their ward number, and limit 

comments to three minutes. No one is permitted to speak on any item scheduled for consideration on 

the regular agenda of the meeting. All remarks shall be addressed to Council as a body, any questions 

must be asked through the mayor only, and there shall be no discussion without permission of the 

mayor. Any person who makes personal, impertinent, abusive, or slanderous statements, or incites 

disorderly conduct in Council Chambers, may be barred by the mayor from further audience before 

Council, and removed, subject to appeal to a majority of Council. (See Rules 405 and 406.) 

 

  



 

4 

 

Regular Business 

 

Reports of City Manager: 

 

R-1 FY 2019 Operating and Capital Budgets 

 

ISSUE: Council is required to approve and adopt a budget annually.  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that Council resolve to approve the FY2019 

operating and capital budgets. 

 

MOTION:            

 

             

 Roll Call 

 

R-2 Community Development Block Grant update  

 

ISSUE:  The City of Hopewell received $177,848 as its FY2019 CDBG allocation. 

Administration has reviewed all FY2018 agencies’ applications for funding, and has developed 

a proposed CDBG spending plan for Council’s consideration.  This presentation is for 

information only. 

 

No action requested of Council at this time 

 

 

R-3 General Registrar Request for Appropriation 

 

ISSUE:  The General Registrar has hired an Assistant Registrar at a salary higher than was 

budgeted for that position. Pursuant to Virginia Code §24.2-111, City Council sets the rate of 

pay for the Deputy Registrar, so the Registrar’s Office is seeking an appropriation of $9,758.44. 

 

 RECOMMENDATIONS:  Staff has no recommendation on this item  

 

MOTION:            
 

              

  Roll Call 

 

 

Reports of the City Attorney:   City council rules update 

 

 

Reports of the City Clerk:  

 

 

Reports of City Council: 

 

 



 

5 

 

 Committees  
 

 

 Individual Councilors   
 

Citizen/Councilor Requests 

 

CCR-1 Shornak Request discussion on panhandling 

 

CCR-2 Shornak Request discussion on littering campaign 

 

CCR-3 Luman-Bailey Request discussion on fiscally/socially responsible housing strategies and 

neighborhood stabilization 

 

Other Council Communications 

 

Adjournment  



 
Work  

Session 
 

 



Rezoning of highland parcel
Hopewell redevelopment and Housing Authority



HRHA vision 2030

Our mission is to promote adequate and affordable housing, economic 
opportunity and a suitable living environment free from discrimination.

We will be the premiere housing agency for Hopewell and surrounding areas



What we have done

 The Summit

 Kippax Place



The site

• Currently zoned for 
approximately 40 apartments

• Currently Forested acreage



Our proposal

 Aligned with proposed Comp. Plan

 Mostly Brick Façade

 Traditional Neighborhood Design Elements

 Energy Efficient Design

 Up to 64 apartments

 Approx. $11M in Development



Our proposal

 Typical Rents 

 1 Bedroom $775

 2 Bedroom $925

 3 Bedroom $1050

 4 Bedroom $1160

 Income Mixing

 Individuals and Families at 40%($30,960) , 50%($38,700), and 

60%($46,400) of AMI ($78,700)



Does the rezoning meet the criteria set out in 
the Comprehensive Plan? 



Is the rezoning an improvement to the area?
Does it fulfill a community need? 



A Key piece of HRHA’s redevelopment 
strategy

 Scenario #1

 Highland Park Property and site #2

 60-68 units at Highland Park

 52-60 units on site #2

 Possible site #2

 600 East Broadway

 350 East Poythress After

Before Davisville/ 
Bland (120)

The 
Rendezvous

Second HRHA-
Developed 
Property



A Key piece of HRHA’s redevelopment 
strategy
 Scenario #2

 Highland Park Property, additional 
Project-based units at Freedman 
Point, tenant-based vouchers

 60-68 units at Highland Park

 9 additional project-based units at 
Freedman Point

 43-51 tenant-based housing choice 
vouchers to move anywhere in the 
city

After

Before Davisville/ 
Bland (120)

The 
Rendezvous

Additional 
project-based 

vouchers 

Housing 
Choice 

Vouchers



A Key piece of HRHA’s redevelopment 
strategy

 Scenario #3

 Highland Park Property and 
tenant-based vouchers

 60-68 units at Highland Park

 52-60 tenant-based housing 
choice vouchers to move 
anywhere in the city

After

Before Davisville/ 
Bland (120)

The 
Rendezvous

Housing 
Choice 

Vouchers



HRHA’s obligation to current residents

 In any scenario, HRHA has an obligation to provide a plan to HUD’s satisfaction 
detailing where all displaced families will go.

 HRHA’s plan for relocating families also will receive approval from the Office 
of Fair Housing

 Our plan includes the provision of:

 Moving costs,

 Housing search assistance/ counseling,

 Financial assistance for transfer of any utilities and

 In some cases, housing assistance payments



HRHA’s Request

Please approve the rezoning of the Highland Park parcel, which is a key piece of 
our redevelopment strategy and will allow us to better serve and support 

Hopewell families.



 
REGULAR 
MEETING 

 



 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 

 



 

PENDING 

LIST 

 

 
 



CITY COUNCIL PENDING LIST 
 

1 

Request Date 
Voted/ 

Requested 

Format/Information 
Requested 

Point Person Status 

Beacon Update; RFP; Marketing Plan; Beacon LLC 
City Manager clarified that only the RFP has been completed so 
far; Shornak requested copy of RFP; Mayor suggested that RFP be 
dispensed to council at the same time as to the public, to which 
City Manager agreed; Shornak requested financial information for 
the Beacon, as well; City Attorney explained Beacon setup and 
why, and advised that LLC could be dissolved 3 years after last tax 
payment rec’d; Walton requested specific date re when LLC can be 
dissolved 
 

2-7-17 
 
 
2-21-17 

Date when LLC can be 
dissolved 
 
Mayor requested Plan when 
submitted. 

March Altman 
Stefan Calos 

ONGOING 
2/1/2018, if notice is given on the 
first possible business day of the 
year. 
2-7-17 Mr. Haley reported, Slap 
Productions hired, contract on 
year to year basis. 
 
1/1/2018 the LLC can proceed to 
purchase the interest of the State 
Investor Member (the 
"Fund").  The purchase would 
occur between 30 and 90 days 
after notice that the LLC is 
exercising its purchase option.   
 
2-13-18 – Council reviewed 
 
2-27-18 – to come back to 
Council 
 
2-27-18 – Discussed with Council 
in closed session – City Manager 
and City Attorney to present 
alternatives to Council 



CITY COUNCIL PENDING LIST 
 

2 

Request Date 
Voted/ 

Requested 

Format/Information 
Requested 

Point Person Status 

 Class and Compensation Study 4-11-17 
 
 
2-1-18 

Council requested costs 
associated with having an 
employee satisfaction 
survey/audit and 
staffing/manpower review 
for efficiency. 
 
 

March Altman 
Renia Coles 

COMPLETED 
6-23-17 - the final study has 
not been received. Upon 
receipt and review, it will be 
sent to Council. 
 
7-7-17 – final report placed in 
council’s packets for 7-11-17 
meeting 
 
2-1-18 – Work session with 
Springsted to review report 
and recommendations 
 
Work Session Scheduled for 3-
27-18 
 

Revision of Council Rules and Procedures 
Breach of Confidentiality Sanctions 
VML training 
VML training for Directors, City Council and Admin 
Gore agreed to combine numbers 5, 10, 21 and 32 of this list into 
this numbered item.  Shornak and Zevgolis have completed draft 
Code of Ethics, which they passed out at meeting; Pelham said 
training should come first; Gore agreed to do VML training which 
would include emphasis on Ethics and Roberts Rules; City Manager 
to schedule training. 
 
 
 

2-9-15 
3-15-16 
2-7-17 
 
 
2-21-17 
 
 
 
 
3-13-17 

Council to review Code of 
Ethics & City Attorney to 
review Code of Ethics 
 
Vice Mayor requested 
Council Rules to be 
distributed to members of 
Council before the March 
17-18, 2017 Retreat. 
 
City Attorney emailed to all 
members of Council 3-13-17 
the proposed revisions for 
Council to review. 

March Altman 
Stefan Calos 
City Clerk 

PENDING 
 
2-19-18 - Council to provide next 
steps. 
 



CITY COUNCIL PENDING LIST 
 

3 

Request Date 
Voted/ 

Requested 

Format/Information 
Requested 

Point Person Status 

4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Cost update on City taking control of Mallonee Gym 
 

6-19-17 
 
2-23-17 

Vice Mayor Gore is awaiting 
meeting dates from the 
Superintendent and will 
inform Mayor when those 
dates are received so they 
can meet. VM stated she 
had heard that Quotes have 
been sent to Mr. Ed Watson 
& requested City Manager 
to provide those quotes to 
her and the members of 
Council.  

March Altman 
Ed Watson 

PENDING 
Vice Mayor Gore requested 
meeting w/Hackney, Watson, 
Haley, etc. for 6-29-17 
 
7-7-17 – due to scheduling 
conflicts, meeting with Gore, 
Hackney, Watson, etc. is being 
rescheduled. 
 
Waiting on quote from Ed 
Watson re windows, 
bathroom and A/C unit to 
schedule meeting 
 
3-19-18 – Altman discussed 
with Watson. Will bring back 
before Council after budget 
session 
 



CITY COUNCIL PENDING LIST 
 

4 

Request Date 
Voted/ 

Requested 

Format/Information 
Requested 

Point Person Status 

 Branding & City Logo’s; compile all used logos for 
approval.  
Council requested that Haley provide them with a list of 
the City’s logos and RFP for Branding 
 
 

5/12/15 
3-15-16 
2-7-17 
 
2-21-17 

Email/Printed logos 
collected used  
 
 
City Manager to provide RFP 
for Branding during the 
Retreat In March 2017. 

March Altman 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PENDING 
6-23-17 email reminder sent to 
Haley 
 
City Manager to email council the 
list of City logos 
 
Haley will issue RFP re branding - 
Hopewell logo 
 
No RFP needed.  
 
THIS REQUIRES AN IMMEDIATE 
UPDATE FROM THE CITY 
MANAGER’S OFFICE 
 
3-19-18 – Altman will review and 
bring back options, proposals etc. 
 



CITY COUNCIL PENDING LIST 
 

5 

Request Date 
Voted/ 

Requested 

Format/Information 
Requested 

Point Person Status 

 Council wants to review and revise its travel policy 4-25-17 Current travel policy is 
outdated 
 
 

Council 
March Altman 

PENDING 
7-7-17 – Council to review it 
policy, along with its revised 
rules with Tyler St. Claire when 
Retreat is scheduled 
 
2-1-18 – Council to have a 
work session regarding its 
travel policy. 
 
3-18-18 – Altman to review 
existing employee travel 
policy; and to work with HR 
and Council re work session 



CITY COUNCIL PENDING LIST 
 

6 

Request Date 
Voted/ 

Requested 

Format/Information 
Requested 

Point Person Status 

 Council requested RFP/design for Riverwalk 
 

4-25-17 Council to be provided with 
a copy of the RFP that was 
issued or will be issued re 
the Riverwalk project 
 

March Altman PENDING 
7-7-17 - A copy of the RFP has 
been placed in your packets.  
Administration will appear 
before Council at the Aug. 8 
2017 meeting to discuss the 
Riverwalk project  
 
9-5-17 – sent email to Dane re 
status 
 
1-23-18 – Council has been 
updated on the status of the 
Riverwalk previously, and 
there will be a brief update 
provided at the 1-23-18 
meeting. 
 
3-19-18 – Altman will provide 
regular project updates 



CITY COUNCIL PENDING LIST 
 

7 

Request Date 
Voted/ 

Requested 

Format/Information 
Requested 

Point Person Status 

 Boards and Commission City Council Letter for Reports, 
Joint Meetings and Information (past/current/future 
projects; bylaws) 

2013-Present 
2-7-17 
 
2-21-17 
 
 
 
1-9-18 

Letter/Email Request and CC 
City Council 
 
Clerk to meet with Mayor 
for review of completed 
DRAFT letter. 

Council 
City Clerk 
 
 

PENDING 
Clerk prepare Letter for Mayor to 
send to the Boards & 
Commissions who are not 
sending minutes as required. 
 
1-9-18 - Vice Mayor Gore gave 
presentation to Council 
regarding status of boards and 
commissions and need for 
change. 
 
 

 Council requested a list of how many already authorized 
positions remain unfilled (requested to be submitted in a 
week) 

2-23-16 
2-29-16 
2-7-17 
2-21-17 

To ascertain how staff 
shortages are impacting 
staff ability to manage tasks 

March Altman 
Department 
Heads 
 

ONGOING 
 
3-18-18 – Altman will provide 
this information as part of the 
budget process 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL PENDING LIST 
 

8 

Request Date 
Voted/ 

Requested 

Format/Information 
Requested 

Point Person Status 

 Youth Commission  2-7-17 
 
 
 
 
 
2-21-17 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3-13-17 

Continue to Accept TBR’s, 
Hold on interviews until 
NEW Ordinance is reviewed 
by Council, Legislative 
Committee and passed. 
 
Final revisions were 
received on 2-21-17; City 
Attorney is rewriting and 
will provide DRAFT to 
Council & Legislative 
Committee 
 
City Attorney emailed to 
Council & Legislative 
Committee for review. 

March Altman 
Stefan Calos 
City Clerk 

ONGOING 
Ordinance revised and emailed 
on 3-13-17 to City Council and 
the Legislative Committee for 
review; Legislative Committee & 
Council now to review and report 
back to City Attorney and City 
Manager with any suggested 
revisions; Council then to Vote on 
Ordinance; Then City Clerk will 
schedule Interviews for 
Committee Members & provide 
them with copy of Ordinance 
during the interview process. 
 
12-2017 – Youth Commission 
established and had first 
meeting. 2nd and 3rd meetings 
also scheduled. 
 
Commission is moving forward 
with new ideas for events; has 
established subcommittee; is 
working on website update and 
social media outreach 
 



CITY COUNCIL PENDING LIST 
 

9 

Request Date 
Voted/ 

Requested 

Format/Information 
Requested 

Point Person Status 

 City Council and School Board to have additional joint 
meetings or to establish sub-committees 
 

3-1-18 Vice Mayor Gore School Board 
City Council 
March Altman 

PENDING 
3-18-18 – Superintendent 
Hackney and Altman have 
discussed re-establishing School 
Board City Council Construction 
Committee 
 

 Council requested information regarding what does the 
Shelter do during the off season 
 

1-9-18 Councilor Pelham Ray Spicer PENDING 

 Information regarding what is still needed to complete the 
2015 CAFR 

1-9-18 Councilor Pelham 
Councilor Gore 

March Altman 
Michael Terry 
 

PENDING 

 Work session with Human Resources to discuss HR Manual 
and employee travel policy 

1-9-18 Councilor Pelham 
Councilor Gore 

March Altman PENDING 
 
3-18-18 – City Manager and HR 
Director to review current policy 
and schedule work session to 
make recommendations for 
changes 

 Repair five poles at shed by the dock – said the shed leans 
10 degrees. 

2-27-18 Councilor Zevgolis Aaron Reidmiller PENDING 

 Restore the National Park Service Waterfront Committee 
Status of planned workshop, secure new contacts 
 

2-27-18 Councilor Luman-Bailey Aaron Reidmiller PENDING 

 Capital Improvement Plan/Schedule for when parks are 
going to be renovated – 10-year plan and costs 
 

2-27-18 Councilor Denton March Altman 
Aaron Reidmiller 

PENDING 
 



CITY COUNCIL PENDING LIST 
 

10 

Request Date 
Voted/ 

Requested 

Format/Information 
Requested 

Point Person Status 

 Can we partner with Resource Conservation Development 
to aid with Community Garden in park 

2-27-18 Councilor Luman-Bailey March Altman 
Aaron Reidmiller 

PENDING 
 
3-18-18 – City 
Manager/Recreation Director to 
get with Community Garden 
specialist in other municipality 
 

 Virginia First Cities – what is amount of fees? Who will pay 
fees? 

2-27-18 Councilor Zevgolis March Altman PENDING 

 Executive Director of Crater Workforce Development 
come to Council to explain what it does for Hopewell 
 

2-27-18 Mayor Shornak Mayor Shornak PENDING 

 Obtain information about Workforce Initiative 
 

2-27-18 Vice Mayor Gore March Altman PENDING 

 Who to reach out to increase the allocation to youth 
services (Connie Townes) 
 

2-27-18 Vice Mayor Gore March Altman PENDING 

 Additional funding for Keep Hopewell Beautiful 2-27-18 Mayor Shornak March Altman PENDING 
 
3-18-18 – Pending FY19 budget 

 Request for program for seniors who use their dumpsters 
sparingly and need to pay less 
 

1-23-18 Councilor Zevgolis Ed Watson PENDING 

 Council asked that agencies requesting funding from 
Hopewell please use the grant form provided on our 
website 
 

4-4-17 Council March Altman PENDING 

 Council asked that agencies that received money from 
Hopewell come forward and state what they had done 
with the money, especially if they are requesting again 

4-4-17 Council March Altman PENDING 



CITY COUNCIL PENDING LIST 
 

11 

Request Date 
Voted/ 

Requested 

Format/Information 
Requested 

Point Person Status 

 Council wanted to confirm that Prince George was paying 
their part for the HPG Chamber. Since this was an ongoing 
problem, they want to confirm prior to the next budget 
session 

4-4-17 Council March Altman PENDING 
 
3-18-18 – Altman has discussed 
with Prince George – they are 
funding for this year – will 
discuss at FY20 budget 
 

 Current financial assessment of fiscal year 2017 12-2017 Gore 
Pelham 
 

March Altman 
Michael Terry 

PENDING 

 Report about all EDA projects and their current status – 
breakdown of all projects with funding sources; if EDA 
owns land or property, how was it acquired, who 
maintains it, who pays the bills and debts for the EDA 

3-19-18 Pelham 
Zevgolis 

Debbie Randolph 
Charles Dane 

PENDING 
 
3-18-18 – CM is assembling 
information and will distribute 
 

 Request for City Manager to work on policies and 
procedures related to CSA, CPMT and FAPT 

3-6-18 Council March Altman PENDING 

 Request to review credit card policy  Pelham March Altman PENDING 
 Boards & Commissions - Dock Commission – Councilors 

Luman-Bailey and Zevgolis will discuss the revival of the 
this Commission and come back to Council with a plan 

4-5-18 Council Christina Luman-
Bailey 
Anthony Zevgolis 

PENDING 

 Boards & Commissions – Planning Commission – need 
more information regarding wetlands; did members of the 
Commission attend a course or educational seminar on 
wetlands 

4-5-18 Council Tevya Griffin PENDING 

 Boards & Commissions – How much is the Planning 
Commission paid? 

4-5-18 Council Tevya Griffin PENDING 

 Boards & Commissions – How much is the School Board 
paid? 

4-5-18 Council Dr. Melody 
Hackney 

 

 Boards & Commissions – Verify that the Recreation 
Commission is fully staffed has been meeting – which 
members, if any, have not been attending 

4-5-18 Council Aaron Reidmiller PENDING 



CITY COUNCIL PENDING LIST 
 

12 

Request Date 
Voted/ 

Requested 

Format/Information 
Requested 

Point Person Status 

 Boards & Commissions – Building Code & Fire Prevention 
– Todd Hawkes, the Building Official, has expressed 
interest in reviving this Committee – get information from 
him 

4-5-18 Council March Altman 
Todd Hawkes 

PENDING 

 What are HUD requirements re one to one match for the 
120 units? Council is requesting a work session with HRHA 

5-8-18 Council HRHA PENDING 

 Verify that the $80,000 allotted to EMS was annual 4-17-18 Council Clerk PENDING 
 Law Library – Need instructions on how to operate 

computer put beside computer in Law Library; need totals 
spent and received to Law Library 

4-7-18 Council Clerk PENDING 

 Requested a study to determine why there was so much 
trouble retaining Hopewell employees, especially police 
and fire; interested in employee retention; programs to 
encourage employees to live in the City 

3-27-18 Anthony Zevgolis 
Brenda Pelham 

March Altman 
John Keohane 

PENDING 

 Councilor Gore requested the data that was provided to 
Springsted prior to them creating their report. She 
specified the data that caused Springsted to make position 
and title changes. 

3-27-18 Jasmine Gore March Altman 
Renia Coles 

PENDING 

 Of the $75,000 set aside by Council for constitutional 
officers, how much has been used? For what? How much 
remains? 

3-27-18 Council March Altman PENDING 

 Request information regarding status of Fire Department 
collections from last year 

5-1-18 Council March Altman 
Donnie Hunter 

PENDING 

 Springsted Comp Study  5-15-18 Jasmine Gore March Altman 
Renia Coles 

PENDING 

      
 



 

FINANCIAL 
REPORT 

 























 

ROUTINE 
GRANT 

APPROVAL 



150 Playcore Drive SE 
Fort Payne, Alabama 35967 

800.235.2440 
gametime.com

May 23, 2018

Aaron Reidmiller, 

I wanted to personally congratulate you and your community on receiving a matching funds award 
from GameTime as part of the 2018 VRPS Statewide Training and Funding Initiative. Your specific 
funding award will be determined once your playground design is completed. 

I’ve included a copy of a funding award certificate, and some background information on the various 
National Demonstration Sites for which you may qualify once your project is complete. I thought you 
might find this information helpful in promoting through your local media.  We will also be issuing a 
press release next week for you to share as well.

Again, congratulations on your upcoming project and thank you for all you do to enrich childhood and 
build communities through play. 

Sincerely, 

Robert V. Barron 
Senior Vice President, GameTime



  

INFORMATION 
FOR COUNCIL 

REVIEW 
 



 
  

  
 

 
May 23, 2018 

 

 

 

Ms. Ronnieye Arrington 

City Clerk 

City of Hopewell 

300 North Main Street 

Hopewell, VA 2386) 

 

RE: Elections of Officers 

 

Dear Ms. Arrington: 

 

On February 13, 2018, the Board of Commissioners elected officers for the period February 13, 2018 thru February 

11, 2019, Chairman – Sheila Flowers and Vice-Chairman – Patrick Plourde. 

 

On May 14, 2018, the Board of Commissioners elected Johnny Jones as Vice-Chairman for the period of  May 14, 

2018 to February 11, 2019.  This is due to Patrick Ploude resigning as a Commissioner. 

 

Please feel free to contact this office, if you have any questions.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

 
 

Sherry Henderson 

Executive Secretary 

 

cc: U.S. Department of HUD 

 
 

 

 

 

    

350 East Poythress Street  
P.O. Box 1361 
Hopewell, Virginia 23860 
Phone: (804) 458-5160, 541-1458 
Fax: (804) 458-3364 
TTY/TDD & Voice   711 

  Hopewell Redevelopment  
    & Housing Authority 
 
      “Where People Matter Every Day” 

 
 
Where   



EDA Meeting 04/02/2018 @ 5:30pm 
 
 
 
Present: Debbie Randolph, Bob Moore, Tom Wagstaff, Joan Gosier, Steve Pettler and Elliot Eliades 
 
Absent: Lynda Frink  
 
Staff Present: Jake Elder   

Others Present: none 
 
Called to order:  D. Randolph called the meeting to order at 5:32pm in the City Council Conference 
Room.  
 
Approval of Agenda:  The Agenda was approved and distributed.  
 
Minutes: L. Frink was absent and March meeting minutes will be distributed at the May meeting for 
approval. 

Treasurer’s Report: 
 
J. Gosier gave a financial report from R Howard, CPA. It included the following: 
 -  Current Revenue & Expenses report  
J. Gosier reported that Mr. Nathan Grubb was behind on payments.  D. Randolph will contact Mr. Grubb. 
After discussion, a motion was made by T. Wagstaff and 2nd by B. Moore to accept the financial report 
with a few minor adjustments to be made. Motion carried.  
 
Amendment of Agenda: Motion was made by T. Wagstaff and 2nd by J. Gosier to amend agenda to 
discuss the EDA’s proposed budget allocation from the City during the Chairperson’s Report.  Motion 
carried. 
 
Chairperson Report:  
 
D. Randolph provided an update on the status of the City’s Comprehensive Plan and encouraged EDA 
members to review the document and provide comments to the Department of Development. 
 
Motion was made by T. Wagstaff and 2nd by B. Moore to request $78,000 budget allocation from the City 
for FY 2018-2019.  Discussion ensued and the following budgetary breakdown was to be submitted to the 
City Manager in a formal letter by D. Randolph: 
$25,000…………..Property upkeep, maintenance and utilities 
$10,000…………..Marketing and Business Retention/Expansion Program 
$18,000…………..Legal Fees and Accounting Services 
$25,000…………..Real Estate Transactions 
 
Motion carried. 
 
 



Unfinished Business:  

D. Randolph reported on Legacy Business Grant Program and revamp of application form and process. 

D. Randolph asked for a member to contact the newly opened CVS about participating in the BRE 
program.  S. Pettler volunteered to contact CVS. 

J. Elder discussed the importance of the BRE program and will provide the BRE subcommittee the listing 
of businesses and suggested questions provided by the Virginia Economic Development Partnership.   

Closed Session:  
The EDA entered closed session to discuss matters related to business development not subject to open 
meeting requirements.  The motion was made to go into closed session by E. Eliades and 2nd by  
S. Pettler. Motion carried.  J. Elder reviewed all projects currently in the pipeline and discussed any 
forthcoming.   
                           
Upon returning to open session the Board stated only matters discussed in closed session were those not 
subject to open meeting requirements. Roll call vote: D. Randolph, Yes; B. Moore, Yes; J. Gosier, Yes;  
T. Wagstaff, Yes; S. Pettler, Yes; and L. Frink, Yes.  
 
Actions from Closed Session:  
 
Motion made by T. Wagstaff and 2nd by B. Moore to allow D. Randolph to contact Project Croissant 
developer about status of project and use discretion in offering any additional time, up to two weeks, to 
complete the project. 
Yeas: D. Randolph, T. Wagstaff, S. Pettler, J. Gosier & B. Moore 
Nays: E. Eliades 
 
New Business:  
 
D. Randolph stated that the hiring of any realtor by the EDA will be tabled due to projects in the pipeline. 
T. Wagstaff brought to the attention of the EDA a parking issue he witnessed during an event at 
Guncotton Coffee Shop on a Wednesday evening. 
 
Upcoming Events:  
 
April 28th, 2018 Wonder City Craft Beer Festival 
  
Next meeting: May 7th, 2018 in the Second Floor City Conference Room @ 5:30pm. 
 
Adjourn: Motion by T. Wagstaff to adjourn, 2nd by B. Moore; adjourned at 7:00pm. 



PUBLIC 
HEARINGS 

 



 
PH-1 

 



 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Anthony J. Zevgolis, Ward #3   □ □ Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine E. Gore, Ward #4 

       
  
  

 

  
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 

Consent Agenda 
Public Hearing 
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business 
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Hold a public hearing to consider citizen comments regarding a 
request for a Zoning Ordinance Amendment to Article VIII Planned Developments (PUD).  
 
ISSUE:  The current Downtown Central Business (B-1) Zoning District regulations located in Article IX of 
the Hopewell Zoning Ordinance does not allow for the development of a master planned site in downtown.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The City Administration recommends that City Council consider citizen 
comments regarding a proposed amendment to Article VIII, Sections A, B, C, E, G & H. 
 
TIMING:   Hold a public hearing on June 12, 2018.  
 
BACKGROUND:  Adding the B-1 district to the PUD District allows for planned development of tracts that 
are at least 5 acres.   The development allows for a mix of uses that are operated, and maintained as a single 
entity. PUD’s allow for a mix of housing, office, and commercial establishments with adequate open and 
recreational spaces.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   Increase opportunity for development of land within the B-1 Zoning District thus 
increasing the economic vitality of the City's downtown.    
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:    1.  Application 

2.  Staff Report  
3.  Amendment (Current, Red-lined, and Proposed) 

      
STAFF:       Tevya W. Griffin, Director, Department of Development  
  

 



Zoning Ordinance Amendment: Article VIII, Planned Development                                                                      Page   1 
 

      Zoning Ordinance Amendment  
Article VIII.  Planned Development  

      Applicant: City of Hopewell 
       
      Staff Report prepared for the Hopewell  

Commission      
 Regular Meeting- June 5, 2018 

 
 
 
This report is prepared by the City of Hopewell Department of Development Staff to provide 
information to the Hopewell Planning Commission to assist them in making an informed decision 
on this matter. 
 
I.  PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

Planning Commission June 5, 2018 Pending 

City Council June 12, 2018 Pending 

 
 
II. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The current Downtown Central Business (B-1) Zoning District regulations does not allow for 
the development of a master planned site.  Adding the B-1 Zoning district as an allowable 
district within the PUD designation allows the development of a large track of land that is 
planned, developed, operated, and maintained as a single entity. PUD’s allow for a mix of 
housing, office, and commercial establishments with adequate open and recreational spaces.   
 
Last year the City contracted with the Urban Land Institute (ULI) to determine best uses and 
policies to develop City owned waterfront property.  One of the recommendations was to 
provide flexibility in the Zoning Ordinance, particularly in the B-1 Zoning District, to allow 
for a mix of uses.  The PUD designation allows such flexibility by allowing developers to 
provide a master planned development of a five acre or greater parcel with the ability to 
create a community with distinct design features and connectivity.  Another important take 
away from the study was the philosophy that “the river belongs to everyone”.  The flexibility 
allowed in the design and placement of buildings in a PUD provides the opportunity to create 
open spaces, view sheds, and multi-modal linkages to the river for all to enjoy.   
 
III.  FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Increase opportunity for development of land within the B-1 Zoning District. 
 
IV.   STAFF RECOMMENATION 
 
Staff recommends the approval of the Zoning Ordinance Amendment.   
 
 
 



Zoning Ordinance Amendment: Article VIII, Planned Development                                                                      Page   2 
 

 
Attachments: 
 

1. Original Article VIII Planned Development 
2. Red lined Article VIII Planned Development 
3. Proposed Article VIII Planned Development 

 



ZONING ORDINANCE Page 8: 1  

    CURRENT ORDINANCE 
 
ARTICLE VIII. 

PLANNED DEVELOPMENTS 
 
STATEMENT OF INTENT 

 

This district is intended to permit development in accordance with a master plan of cluster type 
communities under one (1) ownership or control.  Within such communities, the location of all 
improvements shall be controlled in such a manner as to permit a variety of housing 
accommodations in an orderly relationship to one another, with the greatest amount of open area 
and the least disturbance to natural features.  A planned unit development may include light 
commercial facilities to the extent necessary to serve the needs of the particular planned unit 
development. 

 

A.        WHERE PERMITTED: 
 

Planned Unit Developments (PUD's) shall be permitted in districts R-2, R-3, R-4, B-3 
and, RO-1. 

 
 
 
B.        USE REGULATIONS: 

 

Structures to be erected or land to be used for the following uses: 
 

1. Single family detached dwellings. 
 

2. Two family dwelling (duplex). 
 

3. Multi-family dwellings. 
 

4. Townhouses. 
 

5. Day nursery or day care center. 
 

6.         Neighborhood commercial uses intended to serve the needs of the residents of the 
Planned Unit Development.  Not more than five (5) percent of the gross area of 
the PUD project shall be devoted to commercial uses. 

 

7.         Recreational uses, including club houses, golf courses, pools, tennis courts and 
similar recreational improvements and facilities. 

 

8.       Accessory uses as defined in this ordinance, except no accessory use shall be     
located any closer than fifty (50) feet to the project property line.  For the purpose 
of the ordinance, boat houses and boat docks are considered as accessory uses. 

 

9.         Public utilities such as poles, lines, distribution transformers, meters, water and 
sewer lines. 

 

10. Off-street parking as required in Article XVIII of this ordinance. 
 

11. Signs in accordance with Article XVIII of this ordinance. 
 
 
 
C.        AREA REGULATIONS: 

 

1.         The minimum permitted size of any PUD district shall be five (5) contiguous 



ZONING ORDINANCE Page 8: 2  

acres.   Additional land area may be added to an existing PUD if it is 
adjacent(except for public roads) thereto and forms a logical addition to the existing 
PUD and is under the same ownership. 

 

2. The procedure for an addition shall be the same as if an original application were 
filed. 

 
 
 
D. FRONT, REAR AND SIDE YARD SETBACKS: 

 

When no specific details on setbacks and side yards are shown on the concept plan, then 
those items not specifically addressed would follow ordinary zoning regulations in that 
district. 

 
 
 
E. DENSITY: 

 

The permitted density in dwelling units per gross acre shall be not more than the following: 
 

District Dwelling Units Per Gross Area 

R-2 4 

RO-1 4 

R-3 8 

R-4 15 
B-3 15 

    
 
F. REQUIRED OPEN SPACE: 

 

1.         The required open space shall not be less than fifty (50) percent of the total gross 
area of the Planned Unit Development. 

 

2.         The required developed recreational space shall not be less than ten (10) percent 
of the total gross area of the Planned Unit Development. 

 

3.         Open space shall be defined for the purpose of this Section as the total land or 
water within the boundaries of a Planned Unit Development, designed and intended 
for use and enjoyment as open areas, and not improved with a building structure, 
for use and enjoyment as open areas, and not improved with a building, structure, 
street, road parking area, or any type of sidewalk except for recreational structures.  
The open space includes developed recreational space, and shall be accessible and 
available to all occupants of dwelling units for whose use the space is intended. 

 

4.         Developed recreational space shall be defined for the purpose of this Article as 
that  portion  of  the  open  space  within  the  boundaries  of  the  PUD  which  is 
improved for recreational purposes.  Such improvements may include, but shall 
not be limited to, pedestrian ways and bicycle paths, play lots and playgrounds, 
tennis courts and swimming and boating areas. 



ZONING ORDINANCE Page 8: 3  

5.         All open space, including developed open space, shall be specifically included in 
the development schedule and be constructed and fully improved by the developer 
at an equivalent or greater rate than the construction of residential structures. 

 
 
 
G. MANAGEMENT OF OPEN SPACE: 

 

1.         There shall be established a nonprofit association, corporation, trust or foundation 
of all individuals or corporations owning residential property within the planned 
development to insure the maintenance of open spaces. 

 

2.         When the open space is to be maintained through a nonprofit association, corpora- 
tion, trust or foundation, said organization shall conform to the following require- 
ments: 

a. The developer must establish the organization prior to the sale of any lots. 
b. The membership in the organization shall be mandatory for all residential 

property owners, present or future, within the planned community and said 
organization shall not discriminate in its members or stockholders. 

 

c.         The organization shall manage all open space and recreational and cultural 
facilities; shall provide for the maintenance, administration and operation 
of said land and improvements and any other land within the planned com- 
munity; and shall secure adequate liability insurance on the land. 

 

d. The organization shall conform to the Condominium Act, Section 55- 
79.39 through 55-79.103, Code of Virginia (1950), as amended. 

 

H. MAXIMUM HEIGHT OF BUILDINGS: 
 

1.         The maximum height of any building or structure in a PUD district shall be as 
follows: 

 

a.         For a PUD located in Residential District RO-1, the maximum height shall 
be thirty five (35) feet or two and one half (2 1/2) stories from grade. 

 

b.         For a PUD located in residential districts R-2 and R-3, the maximum 
height shall be forty five (45) feet or three (3) stories from grade. 

 

c.         For a PUD located in residential district R-4, the maximum height shall be 
one hundred twenty five (125) feet or ten (10) stories from grade. 

 
d. For a PUD located in Highway Commercial District B-3, the maximum 

height shall be forty five (45) feet or three (3) stories from grade. 
 

e.     Belfries, cupolas, chimneys, flues, flag poles, television antennae, radio aerials, 
and elevator and stair penthouses are exempt. 

 
 
 
I. STREETS: 

 

Private streets may be permitted in a PUD upon the approval of the governing body, 
provided that their construction standards are equal to the subdivision standards of the 
city, and upon the approval of the city engineer, and provided that there are adequate 
provisions made for the maintenance of said private streets. 



ZONING ORDINANCE Page 8: 4  

 
 
J. UTILITIES: 

 

Within the PUD, all utilities, including telephone, television cable and electrical systems, 
shall be installed underground.  Appurtenances to these systems which require above 
ground installations must be effectively screened. 

 
 
 
K. PLANNED MANUFACTURED HOME DISTRICT - PMH: 

 

1.         Statement of Intent: This district is intended to encourage innovations of manu- 
factured home development so that the demand for manufactured home living 
may be met by the imaginative design and layout of manufactured homes and by 
the efficient use of open space needed for such dwellings, so that opportunities for 
better housing and recreation may be provided for occupants of manufactured 
homes; to encourage a more efficient use of land and public services; and, to provide 
a procedure which can relate the design and layout of a manufactured home 
development to the particular site in a manner consistent with the preserva- tion of 
the property values of adjoining areas. 

 

2.         Where Permitted: PMH districts shall be permitted only in the R-3 district. 
 

3.         Use Regulations:   Structures to be erected or land to be used shall be for the 
following uses: 

 

a. Manufactured homes. 
 

b. Day nursery or day care center. 
 

c.         Neighborhood commercial uses intended to serve the needs of the PMH 
development.  Not more than five (5) percent of the gross area of the PMH 
development shall be devoted to commercial uses. 

 

d.         Accessory uses as defined in this ordinance, except that no accessory 
building will be closer than twenty five (25) feet from any property line of 
the project.  For the purpose of this ordinance, boat houses and boat docks 
are considered as accessory uses. 

 

e.         Public  utilities,  such  as  poles,  lines,  distribution  transformers,  meters, 
water and sewer. 

 

f. Off street parking as required by Article XVIII of this ordinance. 

g. Signs in accordance with Article XVIII of this ordinance. 

4.         Area Regulations: 
 

a.         The minimum permitted area for any PMH district shall be five (5) cont- 
iguous acres.  Additional land may be added to an existing PMH district if 
it is adjacent (except for public roads) thereto, and forms a logical addition 
to the existing PMH district and is under the same ownership or control. 

 

b.         The  procedure  for  an  addition  shall  be  the  same  as  if  an  original 
application were filed. 



ZONING ORDINANCE Page 8: 5  

5. Density: The permitted density shall not be more than eight (8) manufactured 
homes per gross acre. 

 

6. Lot and Yard Requirements: 
 

a. The minimum lot size per manufactured home shall be four thousand 
(4,000) square feet. 

 

b.         The minimum width for each manufactured home lot shall be at least fifty 
(50) feet, except that, for any manufactured home unit greater than fifteen 
(15) feet in width, the minimum lot width shall be one (1) additional foot per 
foot of manufactured home width greater than fifteen (15) feet. 

 

c. The minimum lot length for each manufactured home lot shall be eighty 
(80) feet. 

 

d.         No manufactured home shall be placed within twenty five (25) feet of 
another, provided that, with respect to manufactured homes arranged end 
to end, the distance shall not be less than fifteen (15) feet. 

 

e.         No manufactured home shall be placed less than twenty   five (25) feet 
from the PMH district boundary. 

 

f.         No manufactured home shall be placed less than fifteen (15) feet from any 
interior streets, walks or common areas. 

 

7. Outdoor Living Space: 
 

a.         Each manufactured home lot shall provide an appropriate outdoor living 
space to supplement the interior space of a manufactured home.   Said 
space shall be hard surfaced, and shall be at least three hundred (300) square 
feet.   The dimensions of this space shall not be less than fifteen (15) feet 
by twenty (20) feet. 

 

b.         The outdoor living space shall be convenient to the open areas of the lot 
and other facilities, fitted to terrain and natural features, and related to 
anticipated manufactured home models. 

 

8.         Outdoor Storage Facilities: A storage locker for yard tools and other bulky items 
shall be provided on each manufactured home lot.  The locker shall have a storage 
capacity of at least ninety (90) cubic feet. 

 

9. Manufactured Home Stand: 
 

a.         Required:   Each manufactured home shall be placed on a manufactured 
home stand, defined for the purpose of this Article as an area which has been 
reserved for the placement of a manufactured home. 

 

b.         Size:  The size of the manufactured home stand shall be suitable for the 
general  market  which  is  to  be  served  by the  individual  proposal  and 
suitable to fit the dimensions of the anticipated manufactured homes 
including manufactured home appurtenant structures or appendages. 

 

c.         Size and Location:   The size of the manufactured home stand shall be 
suitable for the general market which is to be served and suitable to fit the 



ZONING ORDINANCE Page 8: 6  

dimensions of the anticipated manufactured homes and shall be located at 
such elevation, distance and angle that placement and removal of a manu- 
factured home is practical. 

 

d.         Gradient:   There shall be a zero (0) percent longitudinal and adequate 
crown or cross gradient for surface drainage. 

 

10.       Markers for manufactured Home Lots: Every manufactured home lot shall be 
clearly defined on the ground by permanent markers.  There shall be posted and 
maintained in a conspicuous place on each lot a number corresponding to the 
number of each lot as shown on a site plan as required in Article XVI of this 
ordinance. 

 

11. Height Regulations: 
 

a. The maximum height of any manufactured home shall be eighteen (18) 
feet from grade. 

 

b. The   maximum   height   of   any   building   or   structure   other   than   a 
manufactured home shall be thirty five (35) feet or two and one half (2 
1/2) stories. 

 

c.         Belfries,  cupolas,  chimneys,  flues,  flag  poles,  television  antennae  and 
radio aerials are exempt. 

 

12. Storage Tanks: 
 

a.         Gasoline, liquified petroleum, gas or oil storage tanks shall be so installed as 
to comply with all city, state and national fire prevention code regulat- ions. 

 

b.         Where oil heating of a manufactured home is provided, a minimum of a 
two hundred fifty (250) gallon fuel storage facility shall be provided on 
each manufactured home lot in an inconspicuous location or manner. 

 

13.       Garbage and Trash Removal: Receptacles of a size and type approved by the City 
of Hopewell shall be placed in every PMH in such a manner that no manufactured 
home is further than two hundred (200) feet from any receptacle.  The receptacles 
shall be emptied by the owner/operator as frequently as may be necessary but not 
less than twice weekly, at least three (3) days apart, to ensure that they shall not 
overflow. 

 

14.       Screening: There shall be a minimum landscaped area, at least ten (10) feet wide, 
along the PMH district boundary of such height as to screen effectively the PMH 
from surrounding development. 

 

15.       Skirting:  Each  manufactured  home  shall  have  approved  skirting  around  its 
perimeter to screen its wheels, undercarriage and tongue.   Skirting must be installed 
within thirty (30) days after occupancy of the unit. 

 

16.       Standards: Every manufactured home placed in this district shall meet all require- 
ments of the Industrialized Building Code of the Commonwealth of Virginia and 
shall be labeled as required by the Code. 



ZONING ORDINANCE Page 8: 7  

17. Required Open Space: 
 

a.         Not less than ten (10) percent of the gross area of the PMH districts shall 
be reserved as common open space for recreational facilities. 

 

b.         Said  open  space  shall  not  include  manufactured  home  lots,  any  area 
covered by a structure, parking areas, or accessory structures (except 
recreational structures which may be regarded as ten (10) percent of the 
required open space), and shall not include proposed street rights of way. 

 

c.         All open space which is not part of individual manufactured home lots 
shall be preserved for its intended purpose as expressed in the approved 
site plan.  The developer shall choose one (1) or a combination of the 
following methods of administering said open space: 

 

(1) Public dedication to the City of the open space:   This method is 
subject to formal acceptance by the City. 

 

(2) Retention of ownership, control and maintenance of the open space 
by the developer. 

 

18.       Streets: Private streets may be permitted in a PMH development, provided that 
their construction standards are equal to those in the subdivision ordinance of the 
city and are approved by the city, and provided that adequate provisions are made 
for the maintenance of said streets. 

 
 
 
L. PLANNED SHOPPING CENTER DISTRICT - PSC 

 

1.         Statement of Intent: The intent of the PSC district shall be to permit the develop- 
ment of neighborhood, community, and regional shopping centers in areas 
appropriate for commercial land use.  It is intended for these shopping centers to 
be planned with carefully organized buildings, service areas, parking areas, and 
landscaped open space; to reduce marginal traffic friction to below that which would 
result from strip commercial development along highways; and to protect property 
values in surrounding neighborhoods. 

 

2.         Where Permitted: PSC districts shall be permitted only in the B-1 and B-2 dis- 
tricts. 

 

3.         Use Regulations: Structures to be erected or land to be used shall be for the 
following uses: 

 

a. Banks and financial institutions. 

b. Bowling alleys. 

c.         Convenience and service establishments such as, but not limited to, barber 
shops, beauty shops, tailors and automatic self service laundries. 

 

d. Night clubs and dance halls. 
 

e. Offices, business and professional. 
 

f. Pet shops, but excluding boarding kennels on the premises. 



ZONING ORDINANCE Page 8: 8  

g.         Public  utilities,  such  as  poles,  lines,  distribution  transformers,  pipes, 
meters, water and sewer lines, booster or relay stations, transformer 
substations, transmission lines and towers. 

 

h. Radio and television broadcasting stations, studios or offices. 
 

i.         Repair services or businesses, including repair of bicycles, guns,  radios, 
televisions, electrical appliances, locks, refrigerators and other name appli- 
ances, shoes, toys, typewriters, watches and clocks. 

 

j. Restaurants, excluding drive ins. 
k. Retail stores not otherwise listed. 

l.         Storage  of  materials  and  supplies  incidental  to  the  conduct  of  any 
permitted use listed herein, provided such storage area is entirely enclosed 
and is conducted in the same building as the business to which it is incidental 
or in a building immediately adjacent thereto. 

 

m. Theaters, motion picture theaters, and assembly halls. 

n. Wholesale businesses. 

o. Off street parking as required by Article XVIII of this ordinance. 
p. Signs in accordance with Article XVIII of this ordinance. 

4. Area Regulations: 
 

a.         The minimum permitted size for any PSC district shall be three (3) cont- 
iguous acres.  Additional land may be added to an existing PSC district if 
it is adjacent (except for public roads) thereto, and forms a logical addition 
to the existing PSC district and is under the same ownership or control. 

 

b.         The  procedure  for  an  addition  shall  be  the  same  as  if  an  original 
application were filed. 

 

5.         Minimum Landscaped Area: The minimum landscaped open space in any PSC 
district shall not be less than ten (10) percent of the gross acreage of the lot.  Such 
landscaped open space shall not be generally open to vehicles, and shall be used, 
in part, to buffer and shield any adjoining residential districts from the adverse 
effects of shopping center operations. 

 

6. Maximum Height of Buildings: 
 

a.         The maximum height of any building or structure in a PSC district shall be 
fifty five (55) feet. 

 

b.         Chimneys, flues, flag poles, television antennae, radio aerials and equip- 
ment penthouses are exempt. 

 

7.         Requirements when a PSC DISTRICT Adjoins Other Zoning Districts:  When a 
PSC district adjoins another zoning district, the front, side or rear yard setbacks only 
on the perimeter of the PSC district shall conform to the abutting zoning districts 
as provided in the zoning ordinance. 



ZONING ORDINANCE Page 8: 9  

8. Design Standards: 
 

a.         The shape of the district shall be suitable for the type of development 
proposed and shall facilitate safe and convenient ingress and egress as 
well as vehicular and pedestrian circulation within the district. 

 

b.         Commercial and service uses and structures and their parking areas shall 
be oriented toward major arterials, minor arterials or collector streets and 
away from adjacent minor streets in residential neighborhoods or from 
adjacent residential neighborhoods not separated from the district by streets. 

 

c.         Landscaping  or  other  devices  shall  be  used  to  screen  surrounding 
residential districts from undesirable views into the PSC district and to 
screen  the  PSC  districts  from  undesirable  external  exposures.     In 
particular, all service and loading areas shall be screened from view from 
public streets and from first floor windows in adjacent residential districts. 
Parking areas for more than five (5) automobiles shall, insofar as reasonably 
possible, be screened from residential view by landscaping, fences, walls or 
by its location in relation to buildings. 

 

d.         Principal vehicular access for the general public shall be only from major 
arterial highways or minor arterial  highways.    Vehicular access from minor 
streets through residential neighborhoods shall generally be avoided and, 
where permitted, shall be so located, designed and controlled so as to be 
primarily for convenience for residents or adjoining residential areas and 
not for general public access.  Pedestrian access may be provided at any 
suitable location within the district, but shall as a general rule be separated 
from vehicular access points in order to reduce congestion, marginal friction 
and hazards.  Any traffic signal deemed necessary by the City Council for 
the continued smooth flow of traffic shall be installed by the City of 
Hopewell with the developer required to pay a pro-rate share of the cost of 
installation. 

 
 
 
M. APPLICATION: 

 

1.         Planned development districts shall be established by amendment to the official 
zoning map, in accordance with the provisions of Article XVI, Site Plan Require- 
ments. 

 

2.         The concept plan shall contain the following data, together with  supplementary 
data for a particular development, as reasonably deemed necessary by the director 
of development or his agent. 

 

a. Concept site information: 
 

(1) Vicinity map at a scale of not less than one (1) inch = 2000'. 
 

(2) Boundary survey including area of the tract related to true meridian 
or United States Geological Survey grid north. 



ZONING ORDINANCE Page 8: 10  

(3)       Attorney's certificate showing the owner or owners of the subject 
property, marketable title to the subject property in such owner or 
owners, names the source of applicant's title or interest in the subject 
property, and the place of record of the latest instrument in the chain 
of title for each parcel constituting the tract. 

 

(4) Total area of the tract. 
 

(5) Abutting street names, width and route numbers. 
 

(6) Owners, zoning districts and uses of each adjoining tract. 
 

(7)     Topographic map with minimum contour intervals and scale 
acceptable to the administrator. 

 

b. Concept design information: 
 

(1)       A concept plan, illustrating the location and functional relationship 
between all proposed land uses. 

 

(2)       Land use plan or plans showing the location and arrangement of all 
proposed land uses, including the height and number of floors of 
all buildings (other than one family and two family dwellings) both 
above and below finished grade; the building setbacks from the 
development boundaries and adjacent streets, roads, alleys and ways; 
the proposed traffic circulation pattern including the location and 
width of all streets, driveways, walkways and entrances to parking 
areas; all off street parking and loading areas; all proposed open 
space areas including common open space, dedicated open space, 
and developed recreational open space; the approximate location of 
existing and proposed utility systems of sanitary sewer, storm sewer, 
water, electrical, telephone and gas lines. 

 

(3)       A plan or statement showing the location and design of all screen- 
ing, and indicating the type and height of such screening. 

 

(4)       A plan or statement detailing the exact number of improved devel- 
oped recreational open space, and all covenants, restrictions and 
conditions pertaining to the use, maintenance and operation of 
common spaces and the percentage of the tract to be used as open 
space. 

 

(5)      For a PUD or PMH district, a statement in tabular form of the 
anticipated residential density and the total number of dwelling units, 
the percentage of the tract which is to be occupied by structures, and 
the total floor area (commercial) of all commercial uses. 

 

(6)      For PSC district, a statement in tabular form of the anticipated 
commercial floor area. 

 

(7)      Architectural sketches of typical proposed structures, including 
lighting fixtures and signs, and landscaping. 



ZONING ORDINANCE Page 8: 11  

(8)      When the development is to be constructed in stages or units, a 
sequence of the development schedule showing the order of con- 
struction of each principal functional element of such stages or units, 
the approximate completion date for each stage or unit, and a cost 
estimate of all improvements within each stage or unit. 

 

(9)       A plan or report indicating the extent, timing and estimated cost  of 
all  offsite  improvements,  such  as  road,  sewer  and  drainage 
facilities, necessary to construct the proposed development, which 
plan or report shall relate to the sequence of development schedule 
if the development is to be constructed in stages or units. 

 

(10)     A statement showing the relationship of the planned development 
to the comprehensive plan of the city. 

 

(11)     Where required by planning commission, a traffic impact analysis, 
showing the effect of traffic generated by the project on sur- 
rounding roads. 

 

(12)     Where required by planning commission, a fiscal impact analysis, 
listing city revenue generated by the project and city expenditures 
resulting from the construction of the project. 

 
 
 
N. REZONING TO PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 

1.   All terms, conditions, safeguards and stipulations made at the time of the rezoning to 
planned development status, including the approval of the concept plan, with or without 
specified modifications, shall be binding upon the applicant or any successors in 
interest.   Deviations from approved plans or failure to comply with any requirements, 
conditions or safeguards shall constitute a violation of these zoning regulations. 

 

2.   The granting of the planned development rezoning, and the approval of the concept 
plan, with or without specified modifications, shall not constitute the recording of a plat 
nor shall it authorize the issuance of building permits.  Such action shall be undertaken 
only after the approval of the site plan and the recording of a plat. 

 
 
 
O. SITE PLANS: 

 

2.        Approval of the concept plan and the application for rezoning shall constitute 
authority for the applicant to prepare site plans in accordance with Article XVI of 
this ordinance, and in conformity with the approved development plan. 

 

3.         The site plans shall be for the entire project, unless the project is staged, in which 
case the site plans for the first stage shall be submitted. 

 

4.        A site plan for a particular development stage, other than the first, shall not be 
approved until construction has been initiated on the immediately preceding stage 
or unit. 



ZONING ORDINANCE Page 8: 12  

5.         Minor deviations from the concept plan shall be permitted in the site plan when 
the director of development determines that such are necessary due to require- ments 
of topography, drainage, structural safety or vehicular circulation; and such 
deviations will not materially alter the character of the approved concept plan, 
including the proposed development sequence.  In no case shall such deviations 
include  the  addition  or  elimination  of  any  building  shown  on  the  approved 
concept plan, increase the density of a PUD or PMH development or increase the 
floor area of a PSC development.  Any changes not authorized by this paragraph 
shall require resubmission of the concept plan in accordance with the procedures 
contained in this Article. 

 

6.         The first site plan shall be submitted within one (1) year after the date of approval 
of the development plan.   If a site plan is not submitted within said period, approval 
of the concept plan, and consequent authority to submit a site plan, shall terminate 
any development by the applicant in accordance with the PUD, PMH and PSC 
regulations, and shall require a resubmission of a concept plan in accordance with 
the procedures set forth in this section.  Within thirty (30) days prior to the 
expiration of said one (1) year period, the applicant may apply to the city manager 
for an extension of time within which to submit a site plan in conformity with the 
approved concept plan.   The city manager may grant such extension, upon good 
cause shown by the applicant, but extension shall not under any circumstances 
exceed an additional one (1) year period; and no more than two (2) such extensions 
may be granted.  If such application is denied, approval of the concept plan, and 
consequent authority to submit a site plan, shall terminate at the end of said one 
(1) year period.   Upon termination of authority to develop as herein provided, 
the city council may initiate a reclassification of the subject property to an 
appropriate zoning district other than PUD, PMH or PSC. 

 

7.         No building permit shall be issued for any building or structure not indicated on 
the approved site plan. 



ZONING ORDINANCE Page 8: 1  

                                                  RED-LINED VERSION 
 
ORDINANCE 2018-XX 
 

An ordinance to amend Article VIII, Planned Developments, Section A, B, C, E, G & H 

 
ARTICLE VIII. 

PLANNED DEVELOPMENTS 
 
STATEMENT OF INTENT 

 

This district is intended to permit development in accordance with a master plan of cluster type 
communities under one (1) ownership or control.  Within such communities, the location of all 
improvements shall be controlled in such a manner as to permit a variety of housing 
accommodations in an orderly relationship to one another, with the greatest amount of open area 
and the least disturbance to natural features.  A planned unit development may include light 
commercial facilities to the extent necessary to serve the needs of the particular planned unit 
development. 

 

A.        WHERE PERMITTED: 
 

Planned Unit Developments (PUD's) shall be permitted in districts R-2, R-3, R-4, and, 
RO-1, B-1 and B-3.   
 
In the R-2, R-3, R-4, and RO-1 district, neighborhood commercial uses are allowed in 
accordance with Section B.6. of this Article.  
 
The intent of the B-1 and B-2 district is to allow for a mix of uses.   Therefore, within 
the B-1 and B-3 District, uses are allowed, per the underlying zoning district, with no 
limit on the allowable percentage of commercial space.  Furthermore, the Planned 
Development process required as a part of this Article, exempts the requirement of 
special permitting, such as a conditional use permit, special exception, and special use 
permit for residential uses.  

 
 
 
B.        USE REGULATIONS: 

 

Structures to be erected or land to be used for the following uses: 
 

1. Single family detached dwellings. 
 

2. Two family dwelling (duplex). 
 

3. Multi-family dwellings. 
 

4. Townhouses. 
 

5. Day nursery or day care center. 
 

6.        Neighborhood commercial uses intended to serve the needs of the residents of the 
Planned Unit Development.  Not more than five (5) percent of the gross area of 



ZONING ORDINANCE Page 8: 2  

the PUD project shall be devoted to commercial uses. 
 

7.         Recreational uses, including club houses, golf courses, pools, tennis courts and 
similar recreational improvements and facilities. 

 

8.      Accessory uses as defined in this ordinance, except no accessory use shall be     
located any closer than fifty (50) feet to the project property line.  For the purpose 
of the ordinance, boat houses and boat docks are considered as accessory uses. 

 

9.         Public utilities such as poles, lines, distribution transformers, meters, water and 
sewer lines. 

 

10. Off-street parking as required in Article XVIII of this ordinance. 
 

11. Signs in accordance with Article XVIII of this ordinance. 
 
 
C.        AREA REGULATIONS: 

 

1.         The minimum permitted size of any PUD district shall be five (5) contiguous 
acres.   Additional land area may be added to an existing PUD if it is adjacent 
(except for public roads) thereto and forms a logical addition to the existing PUD 
and is under the same ownership or control. 

 

2. The procedure for an addition shall be the same as if an original application were 
filed. 

 
 
 
D. FRONT, REAR AND SIDE YARD SETBACKS: 

 

When no specific details on setbacks and side yards are shown on the concept plan, then 
those items not specifically addressed would follow ordinary zoning regulations in that 
district. 

 
 
 
E. DENSITY: 

 

The permitted density in dwelling units per gross acre shall be not more than the following: 
 

District Dwelling Units Per Gross Area 
R-2 4 

RO-1 4 

R-3 8 

R-4 15 
B-1 50 
B-3 15 

    
 
F. REQUIRED OPEN SPACE: 

 

1.         The required open space shall not be less than fifty (50) percent of the total gross 
area of the Planned Unit Development. 

 

2.         The required developed recreational space shall not be less than ten (10) percent 



ZONING ORDINANCE Page 8: 3  

of the total gross area of the Planned Unit Development. 
 

3.         Open space shall be defined for the purpose of this Section as the total land or 
water within the boundaries of a Planned Unit Development, designed and intended 
for use and enjoyment as open areas, and not improved with a building structure, 
for use and enjoyment as open areas, and not improved with a building, structure, 
street, road parking area, or any type of sidewalk except for recreational structures.  
The open space includes developed recreational space, and shall be accessible and 
available to all occupants of dwelling units for whose use the space is intended. 

 

4.         Developed recreational space shall be defined for the purpose of this Article as 
that  portion  of  the  open  space  within  the  boundaries  of  the  PUD  which  is 
improved for recreational purposes.  Such improvements may include, but shall 
not be limited to, pedestrian ways and bicycle paths, play lots and playgrounds, 
tennis courts and swimming and boating areas. 

5.         All open space, including developed open space, shall be specifically included in 
the development schedule and be constructed and fully improved by the developer 
at an equivalent or greater rate than the construction of residential structures. 

 
 
 
G. MANAGEMENT OF OPEN SPACE: 

 

1.     The owners of the property comprising the planned development shall establish a 
non-profit entity to ensure the maintenance of open spaces, directly or by 
agreement with a third party as approved by City Council.  There shall be 
established a nonprofit association, corporation, trust or foundation of all individuals 
or corporations owning residential property within the planned development to insure 
the maintenance of open spaces.   

 

2.  When the open space is to be maintained through a nonprofit association,              
corporation, trust or foundation, said organization shall conform to the following 
requirements: 

a. The developer must establish the organization prior to the sale of any lots. 
b. The membership in the organization shall be mandatory for all residential 

property owners, present or future, within the planned community and said 
organization shall not discriminate in its members or stockholders. 

 

c.         The organization shall manage all open space and recreational and cultural 
facilities; shall provide for the maintenance, administration and operation 
of said land and improvements and any other land within the planned com- 
munity; and shall secure adequate liability insurance on the land. 

 

d. The organization shall conform to the Condominium Act, Section 55- 
79.39 through 55-79.103, Code of Virginia (1950), as amended. 

 

H. MAXIMUM HEIGHT OF BUILDINGS: 
 

1.         The maximum height of any building or structure in a PUD district shall be as 
follows: 

 

a.         For a PUD located in Residential District RO-1, the maximum height shall 
be thirty five (35) feet or two and one half (2 1/2) stories from grade. 

 



ZONING ORDINANCE Page 8: 4  

b.         For a PUD located in residential districts R-2 and R-3, the maximum 
height shall be forty five (45) feet or three (3) stories from grade. 

 

c.         For a PUD located in residential district R-4, the maximum height shall be 
one hundred twenty five (125) feet or ten (10) stories from grade. 

 
d. For a PUD located in the Downtown Central Business District B-1, the 

maximum height shall be fifty five (55) feet or five (5) stories from 
grade.  

 
e.  For a PUD located in Highway Commercial District B-3, the maximum 

height shall be forty five (45) feet or three (3) stories from grade. 
 

f.  Belfries, cupolas, chimneys, flues, flag poles, television antennae, radio 
aerials, and elevator and stair penthouses are exempt. 

 
 
I. STREETS: 

 

Private streets may be permitted in a PUD upon the approval of the governing body, 
provided that their construction standards are equal to the subdivision standards of the 
city, and upon the approval of the city engineer, and provided that there are adequate 
provisions made for the maintenance of said private streets. 

 
 
J. UTILITIES: 

 

Within the PUD, all utilities, including telephone, television cable and electrical systems, 
shall be installed underground.  Appurtenances to these systems which require above 
ground installations must be effectively screened. 

 
 
 
K. PLANNED MANUFACTURED HOME DISTRICT - PMH: 

 

1.         Statement of Intent: This district is intended to encourage innovations of manu- 
factured home development so that the demand for manufactured home living 
may be met by the imaginative design and layout of manufactured homes and by 
the efficient use of open space needed for such dwellings, so that opportunities for 
better housing and recreation may be provided for occupants of manufactured 
homes; to encourage a more efficient use of land and public services; and, to provide 
a procedure which can relate the design and layout of a manufactured home 
development to the particular site in a manner consistent with the preserva- tion of 
the property values of adjoining areas. 

 

2.         Where Permitted: PMH districts shall be permitted only in the R-3 district. 
 

3.         Use Regulations:   Structures to be erected or land to be used shall be for the 
following uses: 

 

a. Manufactured homes. 
 

b. Day nursery or day care center. 
 

c.         Neighborhood commercial uses intended to serve the needs of the PMH 
development.  Not more than five (5) percent of the gross area of the PMH 
development shall be devoted to commercial uses. 



ZONING ORDINANCE Page 8: 5  

 

d.         Accessory uses as defined in this ordinance, except that no accessory 
building will be closer than twenty five (25) feet from any property line of 
the project.  For the purpose of this ordinance, boat houses and boat docks 
are considered as accessory uses. 

 

e.         Public  utilities,  such  as  poles,  lines,  distribution  transformers,  meters, 
water and sewer. 

 

f. Off street parking as required by Article XVIII of this ordinance. 
g. Signs in accordance with Article XVIII of this ordinance. 

4.         Area Regulations: 
 

a.         The minimum permitted area for any PMH district shall be five (5) cont- 
iguous acres.  Additional land may be added to an existing PMH district if 
it is adjacent (except for public roads) thereto, and forms a logical addition 
to the existing PMH district and is under the same ownership or control. 

 

b.         The  procedure  for  an  addition  shall  be  the  same  as  if  an  original 
application were filed. 

5. Density: The permitted density shall not be more than eight (8) manufactured 
homes per gross acre. 

 

6. Lot and Yard Requirements: 
 

a. The minimum lot size per manufactured home shall be four thousand 
(4,000) square feet. 

 

b.         The minimum width for each manufactured home lot shall be at least fifty 
(50) feet, except that, for any manufactured home unit greater than fifteen 
(15) feet in width, the minimum lot width shall be one (1) additional foot per 
foot of manufactured home width greater than fifteen (15) feet. 

 

c. The minimum lot length for each manufactured home lot shall be eighty 
(80) feet. 

 

d.         No manufactured home shall be placed within twenty five (25) feet of 
another, provided that, with respect to manufactured homes arranged end 
to end, the distance shall not be less than fifteen (15) feet. 

 

e.         No manufactured home shall be placed less than twenty   five (25) feet 
from the PMH district boundary. 

 

f.         No manufactured home shall be placed less than fifteen (15) feet from any 
interior streets, walks or common areas. 

 

7. Outdoor Living Space: 
 

a.         Each manufactured home lot shall provide an appropriate outdoor living 
space to supplement the interior space of a manufactured home.   Said 
space shall be hard surfaced, and shall be at least three hundred (300) square 
feet.   The dimensions of this space shall not be less than fifteen (15) feet 
by twenty (20) feet. 

 

b.         The outdoor living space shall be convenient to the open areas of the lot 
and other facilities, fitted to terrain and natural features, and related to 



ZONING ORDINANCE Page 8: 6  

anticipated manufactured home models. 
 

8.         Outdoor Storage Facilities: A storage locker for yard tools and other bulky items 
shall be provided on each manufactured home lot.  The locker shall have a storage 
capacity of at least ninety (90) cubic feet. 

 

9. Manufactured Home Stand: 
 

a.         Required:   Each manufactured home shall be placed on a manufactured 
home stand, defined for the purpose of this Article as an area which has been 
reserved for the placement of a manufactured home. 

 

b.         Size:  The size of the manufactured home stand shall be suitable for the 
general  market  which  is  to  be  served  by the  individual  proposal  and 
suitable to fit the dimensions of the anticipated manufactured homes 
including manufactured home appurtenant structures or appendages. 

 

c.         Size and Location:   The size of the manufactured home stand shall be 
suitable for the general market which is to be served and suitable to fit 
thedimensions of the anticipated manufactured homes and shall be located 
at such elevation, distance and angle that placement and removal of a manu- 
factured home is practical. 

 

d.         Gradient:   There shall be a zero (0) percent longitudinal and adequate 
crown or cross gradient for surface drainage. 

 

10.       Markers for manufactured Home Lots: Every manufactured home lot shall be 
clearly defined on the ground by permanent markers.  There shall be posted and 
maintained in a conspicuous place on each lot a number corresponding to the 
number of each lot as shown on a site plan as required in Article XVI of this 
ordinance. 

 

11. Height Regulations: 
 

a. The maximum height of any manufactured home shall be eighteen (18) 
feet from grade. 

 

b. The   maximum   height   of   any   building   or   structure   other   than   a 
manufactured home shall be thirty five (35) feet or two and one half (2 
1/2) stories. 

 

c.         Belfries,  cupolas,  chimneys,  flues,  flag  poles,  television  antennae  and 
radio aerials are exempt. 

 

12. Storage Tanks: 
 

a.         Gasoline, liquified petroleum, gas or oil storage tanks shall be so installed as 
to comply with all city, state and national fire prevention code regulat- ions. 

 

b.         Where oil heating of a manufactured home is provided, a minimum of a 
two hundred fifty (250) gallon fuel storage facility shall be provided on 
each manufactured home lot in an inconspicuous location or manner. 

 

13.       Garbage and Trash Removal: Receptacles of a size and type approved by the City 
of Hopewell shall be placed in every PMH in such a manner that no manufactured 
home is further than two hundred (200) feet from any receptacle.  The receptacles 
shall be emptied by the owner/operator as frequently as may be necessary but not 



ZONING ORDINANCE Page 8: 7  

less than twice weekly, at least three (3) days apart, to ensure that they shall not 
overflow. 

 

14.       Screening: There shall be a minimum landscaped area, at least ten (10) feet wide, 
along the PMH district boundary of such height as to screen effectively the PMH 
from surrounding development. 

 

15.       Skirting:  Each  manufactured  home  shall  have  approved  skirting  around  its 
perimeter to screen its wheels, undercarriage and tongue.   Skirting must be installed 
within thirty (30) days after occupancy of the unit. 

 

16.       Standards: Every manufactured home placed in this district shall meet all require- 
ments of the Industrialized Building Code of the Commonwealth of Virginia and 
shall be labeled as required by the Code. 

 
17. Required Open Space: 

 

a.         Not less than ten (10) percent of the gross area of the PMH districts shall 
be reserved as common open space for recreational facilities. 

 

b.         Said  open  space  shall  not  include  manufactured  home  lots,  any  area 
covered by a structure, parking areas, or accessory structures (except 
recreational structures which may be regarded as ten (10) percent of the 
required open space), and shall not include proposed street rights of way. 

 

c.         All open space which is not part of individual manufactured home lots 
shall be preserved for its intended purpose as expressed in the approved 
site plan.  The developer shall choose one (1) or a combination of the 
following methods of administering said open space: 

 

(1) Public dedication to the City of the open space:   This method is 
subject to formal acceptance by the City. 

 

(2) Retention of ownership, control and maintenance of the open space 
by the developer. 

 

18.       Streets: Private streets may be permitted in a PMH development, provided that 
their construction standards are equal to those in the subdivision ordinance of the 
city and are approved by the city, and provided that adequate provisions are made 
for the maintenance of said streets. 

 
 
 
L. PLANNED SHOPPING CENTER DISTRICT - PSC 

 

1.         Statement of Intent: The intent of the PSC district shall be to permit the develop- 
ment of neighborhood, community, and regional shopping centers in areas 
appropriate for commercial land use.  It is intended for these shopping centers to 
be planned with carefully organized buildings, service areas, parking areas, and 
landscaped open space; to reduce marginal traffic friction to below that which would 
result from strip commercial development along highways; and to protect property 
values in surrounding neighborhoods. 

 

2.         Where Permitted: PSC districts shall be permitted only in the B-1 and B-2 dis- 
tricts. 

 



ZONING ORDINANCE Page 8: 8  

3.         Use Regulations: Structures to be erected or land to be used shall be for the 
following uses: 

 

a. Banks and financial institutions. 
b. Bowling alleys. 

c.         Convenience and service establishments such as, but not limited to, barber 
shops, beauty shops, tailors and automatic self service laundries. 

 

d. Night clubs and dance halls. 
 

e. Offices, business and professional. 
 

f. Pet shops, but excluding boarding kennels on the premises. 
g.         Public  utilities,  such  as  poles,  lines,  distribution  transformers,  pipes, 

meters, water and sewer lines, booster or relay stations, transformer 
substations, transmission lines and towers. 

 

h. Radio and television broadcasting stations, studios or offices. 
 

i.         Repair services or businesses, including repair of bicycles, guns,  radios, 
televisions, electrical appliances, locks, refrigerators and other name appli- 
ances, shoes, toys, typewriters, watches and clocks. 

 

j. Restaurants, excluding drive ins. 

k. Retail stores not otherwise listed. 

l.         Storage  of  materials  and  supplies  incidental  to  the  conduct  of  any 
permitted use listed herein, provided such storage area is entirely enclosed 
and is conducted in the same building as the business to which it is incidental 
or in a building immediately adjacent thereto. 

 

m. Theaters, motion picture theaters, and assembly halls. 

n. Wholesale businesses. 

o. Off street parking as required by Article XVIII of this ordinance. 
p. Signs in accordance with Article XVIII of this ordinance. 

4. Area Regulations: 
 

a.         The minimum permitted size for any PSC district shall be three (3) cont- 
iguous acres.  Additional land may be added to an existing PSC district if 
it is adjacent (except for public roads) thereto, and forms a logical addition 
to the existing PSC district and is under the same ownership or control. 

 

b.         The  procedure  for  an  addition  shall  be  the  same  as  if  an  original 
application were filed. 

 

5.         Minimum Landscaped Area: The minimum landscaped open space in any PSC 
district shall not be less than ten (10) percent of the gross acreage of the lot.  Such 
landscaped open space shall not be generally open to vehicles, and shall be used, 
in part, to buffer and shield any adjoining residential districts from the adverse 
effects of shopping center operations. 

 

6. Maximum Height of Buildings: 
 



ZONING ORDINANCE Page 8: 9  

a.         The maximum height of any building or structure in a PSC district shall be 
fifty five (55) feet. 

 

b.         Chimneys, flues, flag poles, television antennae, radio aerials and equip- 
ment penthouses are exempt. 

 

7.         Requirements when a PSC DISTRICT Adjoins Other Zoning Districts:  When a 
PSC district adjoins another zoning district, the front, side or rear yard setbacks only 
on the perimeter of the PSC district shall conform to the abutting zoning districts 
as provided in the zoning ordinance. 

8. Design Standards: 
 

a.         The shape of the district shall be suitable for the type of development 
proposed and shall facilitate safe and convenient ingress and egress as 
well as vehicular and pedestrian circulation within the district. 

 

b.         Commercial and service uses and structures and their parking areas shall 
be oriented toward major arterials, minor arterials or collector streets and 
away from adjacent minor streets in residential neighborhoods or from 
adjacent residential neighborhoods not separated from the district by streets. 

 

c.         Landscaping  or  other  devices  shall  be  used  to  screen  surrounding 
residential districts from undesirable views into the PSC district and to 
screen  the  PSC  districts  from  undesirable  external  exposures.     In 
particular, all service and loading areas shall be screened from view from 
public streets and from first floor windows in adjacent residential districts. 
Parking areas for more than five (5) automobiles shall, insofar as reasonably 
possible, be screened from residential view by landscaping, fences, walls or 
by its location in relation to buildings. 

 

d.         Principal vehicular access for the general public shall be only from major 
arterial highways or minor arterial  highways.    Vehicular access from minor 
streets through residential neighborhoods shall generally be avoided and, 
where permitted, shall be so located, designed and controlled so as to be 
primarily for convenience for residents or adjoining residential areas and 
not for general public access.  Pedestrian access may be provided at any 
suitable location within the district, but shall as a general rule be separated 
from vehicular access points in order to reduce congestion, marginal friction 
and hazards.  Any traffic signal deemed necessary by the City Council for 
the continued smooth flow of traffic shall be installed by the City of 
Hopewell with the developer required to pay a pro-rate share of the cost of 
installation. 

 
 
 
M. APPLICATION: 

 

1.         Planned development districts shall be established by amendment to the official 
zoning map, in accordance with the provisions of Article XVI, Site Plan Require- 
ments. 

 

2.         The concept plan shall contain the following data, together with supplementary 
data for a particular development, as reasonably deemed necessary by the director 
of development or his agent. 



ZONING ORDINANCE Page 8: 10  

 

a. Concept site information: 
 

(1) Vicinity map at a scale of not less than one (1) inch = 2000'. 
 

(2) Boundary survey including area of the tract related to true meridian 
or United States Geological Survey grid north. 



ZONING ORDINANCE Page 8: 11  

(3)       Attorney's certificate showing the owner or owners of the subject 
property, marketable title to the subject property in such owner or 
owners, names the source of applicant's title or interest in the subject 
property, and the place of record of the latest instrument in the chain 
of title for each parcel constituting the tract. 

 

(4) Total area of the tract. 
 

(5) Abutting street names, width and route numbers. 
 

(6) Owners, zoning districts and uses of each adjoining tract. 
 

(7)     Topographic map with minimum contour intervals and scale 
acceptable to the administrator. 

 

b. Concept design information: 
 

(1)       A concept plan, illustrating the location and functional relationship 
between all proposed land uses. 

 

(2)       Land use plan or plans showing the location and arrangement of all 
proposed land uses, including the height and number of floors of 
all buildings (other than one family and two family dwellings) both 
above and below finished grade; the building setbacks from the 
development boundaries and adjacent streets, roads, alleys and ways; 
the proposed traffic circulation pattern including the location and 
width of all streets, driveways, walkways and entrances to parking 
areas; all off street parking and loading areas; all proposed open 
space areas including common open space, dedicated open space, 
and developed recreational open space; the approximate location of 
existing and proposed utility systems of sanitary sewer, storm sewer, 
water, electrical, telephone and gas lines. 

 

(3)       A plan or statement showing the location and design of all screen- 
ing, and indicating the type and height of such screening. 

 

(4)       A plan or statement detailing the exact number of improved devel- 
oped recreational open space, and all covenants, restrictions and 
conditions pertaining to the use, maintenance and operation of 
common spaces and the percentage of the tract to be used as open 
space. 

 

(5)      For a PUD or PMH district, a statement in tabular form of the 
anticipated residential density and the total number of dwelling units, 
the percentage of the tract which is to be occupied by structures, and 
the total floor area (commercial) of all commercial uses. 

 

(6)      For PSC district, a statement in tabular form of the anticipated 
commercial floor area. 

 

(7)      Architectural sketches of typical proposed structures, including 
lighting fixtures and signs, and landscaping. 



ZONING ORDINANCE Page 8: 12  

(8)      When the development is to be constructed in stages or units, a 
sequence of the development schedule showing the order of con- 
struction of each principal functional element of such stages or units, 
the approximate completion date for each stage or unit, and a cost 
estimate of all improvements within each stage or unit. 

 

(9)       A plan or report indicating the extent, timing and estimated cost  of 
all  offsite  improvements,  such  as  road,  sewer  and  drainage 
facilities, necessary to construct the proposed development, which 
plan or report shall relate to the sequence of development schedule 
if the development is to be constructed in stages or units. 

 

(10)     A statement showing the relationship of the planned development 
to the comprehensive plan of the city. 

 

(11)     Where required by planning commission, a traffic impact analysis, 
showing the effect of traffic generated by the project on sur- 
rounding roads. 

 

(12)     Where required by planning commission, a fiscal impact analysis, 
listing city revenue generated by the project and city expenditures 
resulting from the construction of the project. 

 
 
 
N. REZONING TO PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 

1.   All terms, conditions, safeguards and stipulations made at the time of the rezoning to 
planned development status, including the approval of the concept plan, with or without 
specified modifications, shall be binding upon the applicant or any successors in 
interest.   Deviations from approved plans or failure to comply with any requirements, 
conditions or safeguards shall constitute a violation of these zoning regulations. 

 

2.   The granting of the planned development rezoning, and the approval of the concept 
plan, with or without specified modifications, shall not constitute the recording of a plat 
nor shall it authorize the issuance of building permits.  Such action shall be undertaken 
only after the approval of the site plan and the recording of a plat. 

 
 
 
O. SITE PLANS: 

 

1. Approval of the concept plan and the application for rezoning shall constitute authority 
for the applicant to prepare site plans in accordance with Article XVI of this ordinance, 
and in conformity with the approved development plan. 

 

2. The site plans shall be for the entire project, unless the project is staged, in which case 
the site plans for the first stage shall be submitted. 

 

3. A site plan for a particular development stage, other than the first, shall not be approved 
until construction has been initiated on the immediately preceding stage or unit. 



ZONING ORDINANCE Page 8: 13  

4. Minor deviations from the concept plan shall be permitted in the site plan when the 
director of development determines that such are necessary due to require- ments of 
topography, drainage, structural safety or vehicular circulation; and such deviations will 
not materially alter the character of the approved concept plan, including the proposed 
development sequence.  In no case shall such deviations include  the  addition  or  
elimination  of  any  building  shown  on  the  approved concept plan, increase the 
density of a PUD or PMH development or increase the floor area of a PSC development.  
Any changes not authorized by this paragraph shall require resubmission of the concept 
plan in accordance with the procedures contained in this Article. 

 

5. The first site plan shall be submitted within one (1) year after the date of approval of 
the development plan.   If a site plan is not submitted within said period, approval of the 
concept plan, and consequent authority to submit a site plan, shall terminate any 
development by the applicant in accordance with the PUD, PMH and PSC regulations, 
and shall require a resubmission of a concept plan in accordance with the procedures 
set forth in this section.  Within thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of said one (1) 
year period, the applicant may apply to the city manager for an extension of time within 
which to submit a site plan in conformity with the approved concept plan.   The city 
manager may grant such extension, upon good cause shown by the applicant, but 
extension shall not under any circumstances exceed an additional one (1) year period; 
and no more than two (2) such extensions may be granted.  If such application is denied, 
approval of the concept plan, and consequent authority to submit a site plan, shall 
terminate at the end of said one (1) year period.   Upon termination of authority to 
develop as herein provided, the city council may initiate a reclassification of the subject 
property to an appropriate zoning district other than PUD, PMH or PSC. 

 

6. No building permit shall be issued for any building or structure not indicated on the 
approved site plan. 



ZONING ORDINANCE Page 8: 1  

                                               PROPOSED ORDIANCE 
 
ORDINANCE 2018-XX 
 

An ordinance to amend Article VIII, Planned Developments, Section A, B, C, E, G & H 

 
ARTICLE VIII. 

PLANNED DEVELOPMENTS 
 
STATEMENT OF INTENT 

 

This district is intended to permit development in accordance with a master plan of cluster type 
communities under one (1) ownership or control.  Within such communities, the location of all 
improvements shall be controlled in such a manner as to permit a variety of housing 
accommodations in an orderly relationship to one another, with the greatest amount of open area 
and the least disturbance to natural features.  A planned unit development may include light 
commercial facilities to the extent necessary to serve the needs of the particular planned unit 
development. 

 

A.        WHERE PERMITTED: 
 

Planned Unit Developments (PUD's) shall be permitted in districts R-2, R-3, R-4, and, 
RO-1, B-1 and B-3.   
 
In the R-2, R-3, R-4, and RO-1 district, neighborhood commercial uses are allowed in 
accordance with Section B.6. of this Article.  
 
The intent of the B-1 and B-2 district is to allow for a mix of uses.   Therefore, within the 
B-1 and B-3 District, uses are allowed, per the underlying zoning district, with no limit on 
the allowable percentage of commercial space.  Furthermore, the Planned Development 
process required as a part of this Article, exempts the requirement of special permitting, such 
as a conditional use permit, special exception, and special use permit for residential uses.  

 
 
 
B.        USE REGULATIONS: 

 

Structures to be erected or land to be used for the following uses: 
 

1. Single family detached dwellings. 
 

2. Two family dwelling (duplex). 
 

3. Multi-family dwellings. 
 

4. Townhouses. 
 

5. Day nursery or day care center. 
 

6.        Neighborhood commercial uses intended to serve the needs of the residents of the 
Planned Unit Development.  Not more than five (5) percent of the gross area of 
the PUD project shall be devoted to commercial uses. 

 



ZONING ORDINANCE Page 8: 2  

7.         Recreational uses, including club houses, golf courses, pools, tennis courts and 
similar recreational improvements and facilities. 

 

8.      Accessory uses as defined in this ordinance, except no accessory use shall be     
located any closer than fifty (50) feet to the project property line.  For the purpose 
of the ordinance, boat houses and boat docks are considered as accessory uses. 

 

9.         Public utilities such as poles, lines, distribution transformers, meters, water and 
sewer lines. 

 

10. Off-street parking as required in Article XVIII of this ordinance. 
 

11. Signs in accordance with Article XVIII of this ordinance. 
 
 
C.        AREA REGULATIONS: 

 

1.         The minimum permitted size of any PUD district shall be five (5) contiguous 
acres.   Additional land area may be added to an existing PUD if it is adjacent 
(except for public roads) thereto and forms a logical addition to the existing PUD 
and is under the same ownership or control. 

 

2. The procedure for an addition shall be the same as if an original application were 
filed. 

 
 
 
D. FRONT, REAR AND SIDE YARD SETBACKS: 

 

When no specific details on setbacks and side yards are shown on the concept plan, then 
those items not specifically addressed would follow ordinary zoning regulations in that 
district. 

 
 
 
E. DENSITY: 

 

The permitted density in dwelling units per gross acre shall be not more than the following: 
 

District Dwelling Units Per Gross Area 
R-2 4 

RO-1 4 

R-3 8 

R-4 15 
B-1 50 
B-3 15 

    
 
F. REQUIRED OPEN SPACE: 

 

1.         The required open space shall not be less than fifty (50) percent of the total gross 
area of the Planned Unit Development. 

 

2.         The required developed recreational space shall not be less than ten (10) percent 
of the total gross area of the Planned Unit Development. 

 



ZONING ORDINANCE Page 8: 3  

3.         Open space shall be defined for the purpose of this Section as the total land or 
water within the boundaries of a Planned Unit Development, designed and intended 
for use and enjoyment as open areas, and not improved with a building structure, 
for use and enjoyment as open areas, and not improved with a building, structure, 
street, road parking area, or any type of sidewalk except for recreational structures.  
The open space includes developed recreational space, and shall be accessible and 
available to all occupants of dwelling units for whose use the space is intended. 

 

4.         Developed recreational space shall be defined for the purpose of this Article as 
that  portion  of  the  open  space  within  the  boundaries  of  the  PUD  which  is 
improved for recreational purposes.  Such improvements may include, but shall 
not be limited to, pedestrian ways and bicycle paths, play lots and playgrounds, 
tennis courts and swimming and boating areas. 

5.         All open space, including developed open space, shall be specifically included in 
the development schedule and be constructed and fully improved by the developer 
at an equivalent or greater rate than the construction of residential structures. 

 
 
 
G. MANAGEMENT OF OPEN SPACE: 

 

1.     The owners of the property comprising the planned development shall establish a non-
profit entity to ensure the maintenance of open spaces, directly or by agreement with 
a third party as approved by City Council. 
  

2.  When the open space is to be maintained through a nonprofit association,              
corporation, trust or foundation, said organization shall conform to the following 
requirements: 

a. The developer must establish the organization prior to the sale of any lots. 
b. The membership in the organization shall be mandatory for all residential 

property owners, present or future, within the planned community and said 
organization shall not discriminate in its members or stockholders. 

 

c.         The organization shall manage all open space and recreational and cultural 
facilities; shall provide for the maintenance, administration and operation 
of said land and improvements and any other land within the planned com- 
munity; and shall secure adequate liability insurance on the land. 

 

d. The organization shall conform to the Condominium Act, Section 55- 
79.39 through 55-79.103, Code of Virginia (1950), as amended. 

 

H. MAXIMUM HEIGHT OF BUILDINGS: 
 

1.         The maximum height of any building or structure in a PUD district shall be as 
follows: 

 

a.         For a PUD located in Residential District RO-1, the maximum height shall 
be thirty five (35) feet or two and one half (2 1/2) stories from grade. 

 

b.         For a PUD located in residential districts R-2 and R-3, the maximum 
height shall be forty five (45) feet or three (3) stories from grade. 

 

c.         For a PUD located in residential district R-4, the maximum height shall be 
one hundred twenty five (125) feet or ten (10) stories from grade. 



ZONING ORDINANCE Page 8: 4  

 
d. For a PUD located in the Downtown Central Business District B-1, the 

maximum height shall be fifty five (55) feet or five (5) stories from grade.  
 
e.  For a PUD located in Highway Commercial District B-3, the maximum 

height shall be forty five (45) feet or three (3) stories from grade. 
 

f.  Belfries, cupolas, chimneys, flues, flag poles, television antennae, radio 
aerials, and elevator and stair penthouses are exempt. 

 
 
I. STREETS: 

 

Private streets may be permitted in a PUD upon the approval of the governing body, 
provided that their construction standards are equal to the subdivision standards of the 
city, and upon the approval of the city engineer, and provided that there are adequate 
provisions made for the maintenance of said private streets. 

 
 
J. UTILITIES: 

 

Within the PUD, all utilities, including telephone, television cable and electrical systems, 
shall be installed underground.  Appurtenances to these systems which require above 
ground installations must be effectively screened. 

 
 
 
K. PLANNED MANUFACTURED HOME DISTRICT - PMH: 

 

1.         Statement of Intent: This district is intended to encourage innovations of manu- 
factured home development so that the demand for manufactured home living 
may be met by the imaginative design and layout of manufactured homes and by 
the efficient use of open space needed for such dwellings, so that opportunities for 
better housing and recreation may be provided for occupants of manufactured 
homes; to encourage a more efficient use of land and public services; and, to provide 
a procedure which can relate the design and layout of a manufactured home 
development to the particular site in a manner consistent with the preservation of 
the property values of adjoining areas. 

 

2.         Where Permitted: PMH districts shall be permitted only in the R-3 district. 
 

3.         Use Regulations:   Structures to be erected or land to be used shall be for the 
following uses: 

 

a. Manufactured homes. 
 

b. Day nursery or day care center. 
 

c.         Neighborhood commercial uses intended to serve the needs of the PMH 
development.  Not more than five (5) percent of the gross area of the PMH 
development shall be devoted to commercial uses. 

 

d.         Accessory uses as defined in this ordinance, except that no accessory 
building will be closer than twenty five (25) feet from any property line of 
the project.  For the purpose of this ordinance, boat houses and boat docks 
are considered as accessory uses. 

 



ZONING ORDINANCE Page 8: 5  

e.         Public  utilities,  such  as  poles,  lines,  distribution  transformers,  meters, 
water and sewer. 

 

f. Off street parking as required by Article XVIII of this ordinance. 
g. Signs in accordance with Article XVIII of this ordinance. 

4.         Area Regulations: 
 

a.         The minimum permitted area for any PMH district shall be five (5) cont- 
iguous acres.  Additional land may be added to an existing PMH district if 
it is adjacent (except for public roads) thereto, and forms a logical addition 
to the existing PMH district and is under the same ownership or control. 

 

b.         The  procedure  for  an  addition  shall  be  the  same  as  if  an  original 
application were filed. 

5. Density: The permitted density shall not be more than eight (8) manufactured 
homes per gross acre. 

 

6. Lot and Yard Requirements: 
 

a. The minimum lot size per manufactured home shall be four thousand 
(4,000) square feet. 

 

b.         The minimum width for each manufactured home lot shall be at least fifty 
(50) feet, except that, for any manufactured home unit greater than fifteen 
(15) feet in width, the minimum lot width shall be one (1) additional foot per 
foot of manufactured home width greater than fifteen (15) feet. 

 

c. The minimum lot length for each manufactured home lot shall be eighty 
(80) feet. 

 

d.         No manufactured home shall be placed within twenty five (25) feet of 
another, provided that, with respect to manufactured homes arranged end 
to end, the distance shall not be less than fifteen (15) feet. 

 

e.         No manufactured home shall be placed less than twenty   five (25) feet 
from the PMH district boundary. 

 

f.         No manufactured home shall be placed less than fifteen (15) feet from any 
interior streets, walks or common areas. 

 

7. Outdoor Living Space: 
 

a.         Each manufactured home lot shall provide an appropriate outdoor living 
space to supplement the interior space of a manufactured home.   Said 
space shall be hard surfaced, and shall be at least three hundred (300) square 
feet.   The dimensions of this space shall not be less than fifteen (15) feet 
by twenty (20) feet. 

 

b.         The outdoor living space shall be convenient to the open areas of the lot 
and other facilities, fitted to terrain and natural features, and related to 
anticipated manufactured home models. 

 

8.         Outdoor Storage Facilities: A storage locker for yard tools and other bulky items 
shall be provided on each manufactured home lot.  The locker shall have a storage 
capacity of at least ninety (90) cubic feet. 

 



ZONING ORDINANCE Page 8: 6  

9. Manufactured Home Stand: 
 

a.         Required:   Each manufactured home shall be placed on a manufactured 
home stand, defined for the purpose of this Article as an area which has been 
reserved for the placement of a manufactured home. 

 

b.         Size:  The size of the manufactured home stand shall be suitable for the 
general  market  which  is  to  be  served  by the  individual  proposal  and 
suitable to fit the dimensions of the anticipated manufactured homes 
including manufactured home appurtenant structures or appendages. 

 

c.         Size and Location:   The size of the manufactured home stand shall be 
suitable for the general market which is to be served and suitable to fit the 
dimensions of the anticipated manufactured homes and shall be located at 
such elevation, distance and angle that placement and removal of a manu- 
factured home is practical. 

 

d.         Gradient:   There shall be a zero (0) percent longitudinal and adequate 
crown or cross gradient for surface drainage. 

 

10.       Markers for manufactured Home Lots: Every manufactured home lot shall be 
clearly defined on the ground by permanent markers.  There shall be posted and 
maintained in a conspicuous place on each lot a number corresponding to the 
number of each lot as shown on a site plan as required in Article XVI of this 
ordinance. 

 

11. Height Regulations: 
 

a. The maximum height of any manufactured home shall be eighteen (18) 
feet from grade. 

 

b. The   maximum   height   of   any   building   or   structure   other   than   a 
manufactured home shall be thirty five (35) feet or two and one half (2 
1/2) stories. 

 

c.         Belfries,  cupolas,  chimneys,  flues,  flag  poles,  television  antennae  and 
radio aerials are exempt. 

 

12. Storage Tanks: 
 

a.         Gasoline, liquified petroleum, gas or oil storage tanks shall be so installed as 
to comply with all city, state and national fire prevention code regulat- ions. 

 

b.         Where oil heating of a manufactured home is provided, a minimum of a 
two hundred fifty (250) gallon fuel storage facility shall be provided on 
each manufactured home lot in an inconspicuous location or manner. 

 

13.       Garbage and Trash Removal: Receptacles of a size and type approved by the City 
of Hopewell shall be placed in every PMH in such a manner that no manufactured 
home is further than two hundred (200) feet from any receptacle.  The receptacles 
shall be emptied by the owner/operator as frequently as may be necessary but not 
less than twice weekly, at least three (3) days apart, to ensure that they shall not 
overflow. 

 

14.       Screening: There shall be a minimum landscaped area, at least ten (10) feet wide, 
along the PMH district boundary of such height as to screen effectively the PMH 



ZONING ORDINANCE Page 8: 7  

from surrounding development. 
 

15.       Skirting:  Each  manufactured  home  shall  have  approved  skirting  around  its 
perimeter to screen its wheels, undercarriage and tongue.   Skirting must be installed 
within thirty (30) days after occupancy of the unit. 

 

16.       Standards: Every manufactured home placed in this district shall meet all require- 
ments of the Industrialized Building Code of the Commonwealth of Virginia and 
shall be labeled as required by the Code. 

 
17. Required Open Space: 

 

a.         Not less than ten (10) percent of the gross area of the PMH districts shall 
be reserved as common open space for recreational facilities. 

 

b.         Said  open  space  shall  not  include  manufactured  home  lots,  any  area 
covered by a structure, parking areas, or accessory structures (except 
recreational structures which may be regarded as ten (10) percent of the 
required open space), and shall not include proposed street rights of way. 

 

c.         All open space which is not part of individual manufactured home lots 
shall be preserved for its intended purpose as expressed in the approved 
site plan.  The developer shall choose one (1) or a combination of the 
following methods of administering said open space: 

 

(1) Public dedication to the City of the open space:   This method is 
subject to formal acceptance by the City. 

 

(2) Retention of ownership, control and maintenance of the open space 
by the developer. 

 

18.       Streets: Private streets may be permitted in a PMH development, provided that 
their construction standards are equal to those in the subdivision ordinance of the 
city and are approved by the city, and provided that adequate provisions are made 
for the maintenance of said streets. 

 
 
 
L. PLANNED SHOPPING CENTER DISTRICT - PSC 

 

1.         Statement of Intent: The intent of the PSC district shall be to permit the develop- 
ment of neighborhood, community, and regional shopping centers in areas 
appropriate for commercial land use.  It is intended for these shopping centers to 
be planned with carefully organized buildings, service areas, parking areas, and 
landscaped open space; to reduce marginal traffic friction to below that which would 
result from strip commercial development along highways; and to protect property 
values in surrounding neighborhoods. 

 

2.         Where Permitted: PSC districts shall be permitted only in the B-1 and B-2 dis- 
tricts. 

 

3.         Use Regulations: Structures to be erected or land to be used shall be for the 
following uses: 

 

a. Banks and financial institutions. 

b. Bowling alleys. 



ZONING ORDINANCE Page 8: 8  

c.         Convenience and service establishments such as, but not limited to, barber 
shops, beauty shops, tailors and automatic self service laundries. 

 

d. Night clubs and dance halls. 
 

e. Offices, business and professional. 
 

f. Pet shops, but excluding boarding kennels on the premises. 
g.         Public  utilities,  such  as  poles,  lines,  distribution  transformers,  pipes, 

meters, water and sewer lines, booster or relay stations, transformer 
substations, transmission lines and towers. 

 

h. Radio and television broadcasting stations, studios or offices. 
 

i.         Repair services or businesses, including repair of bicycles, guns,  radios, 
televisions, electrical appliances, locks, refrigerators and other name appli- 
ances, shoes, toys, typewriters, watches and clocks. 

 

j. Restaurants, excluding drive ins. 
k. Retail stores not otherwise listed. 

l.         Storage  of  materials  and  supplies  incidental  to  the  conduct  of  any 
permitted use listed herein, provided such storage area is entirely enclosed 
and is conducted in the same building as the business to which it is incidental 
or in a building immediately adjacent thereto. 

 

m. Theaters, motion picture theaters, and assembly halls. 

n. Wholesale businesses. 

o. Off street parking as required by Article XVIII of this ordinance. 

p. Signs in accordance with Article XVIII of this ordinance. 

4. Area Regulations: 
 

a.         The minimum permitted size for any PSC district shall be three (3) cont- 
iguous acres.  Additional land may be added to an existing PSC district if 
it is adjacent (except for public roads) thereto, and forms a logical addition 
to the existing PSC district and is under the same ownership or control. 

 

b.         The  procedure  for  an  addition  shall  be  the  same  as  if  an  original 
application were filed. 

 

5.         Minimum Landscaped Area: The minimum landscaped open space in any PSC 
district shall not be less than ten (10) percent of the gross acreage of the lot.  Such 
landscaped open space shall not be generally open to vehicles, and shall be used, 
in part, to buffer and shield any adjoining residential districts from the adverse 
effects of shopping center operations. 

 

6. Maximum Height of Buildings: 
 

a.         The maximum height of any building or structure in a PSC district shall be 
fifty five (55) feet. 

 

b.         Chimneys, flues, flag poles, television antennae, radio aerials and equip- 
ment penthouses are exempt. 

 



ZONING ORDINANCE Page 8: 9  

7.         Requirements when a PSC DISTRICT Adjoins Other Zoning Districts:  When a 
PSC district adjoins another zoning district, the front, side or rear yard setbacks only 
on the perimeter of the PSC district shall conform to the abutting zoning districts 
as provided in the zoning ordinance. 

8. Design Standards: 
 

a.         The shape of the district shall be suitable for the type of development 
proposed and shall facilitate safe and convenient ingress and egress as 
well as vehicular and pedestrian circulation within the district. 

 

b.         Commercial and service uses and structures and their parking areas shall 
be oriented toward major arterials, minor arterials or collector streets and 
away from adjacent minor streets in residential neighborhoods or from 
adjacent residential neighborhoods not separated from the district by streets. 

 

c.         Landscaping  or  other  devices  shall  be  used  to  screen  surrounding 
residential districts from undesirable views into the PSC district and to 
screen  the  PSC  districts  from  undesirable  external  exposures.     In 
particular, all service and loading areas shall be screened from view from 
public streets and from first floor windows in adjacent residential districts. 
Parking areas for more than five (5) automobiles shall, insofar as reasonably 
possible, be screened from residential view by landscaping, fences, walls or 
by its location in relation to buildings. 

 

d.         Principal vehicular access for the general public shall be only from major 
arterial highways or minor arterial  highways.    Vehicular access from minor 
streets through residential neighborhoods shall generally be avoided and, 
where permitted, shall be so located, designed and controlled so as to be 
primarily for convenience for residents or adjoining residential areas and 
not for general public access.  Pedestrian access may be provided at any 
suitable location within the district, but shall as a general rule be separated 
from vehicular access points in order to reduce congestion, marginal friction 
and hazards.  Any traffic signal deemed necessary by the City Council for 
the continued smooth flow of traffic shall be installed by the City of 
Hopewell with the developer required to pay a pro-rate share of the cost of 
installation. 

 
M. APPLICATION: 

 

1.         Planned development districts shall be established by amendment to the official 
zoning map, in accordance with the provisions of Article XVI, Site Plan Require- 
ments. 

 

2.         The concept plan shall contain the following data, together with supplementary 
data for a particular development, as reasonably deemed necessary by the director 
of development or his agent. 

 

a. Concept site information: 
 

(1) Vicinity map at a scale of not less than one (1) inch = 2000'. 
 

(2) Boundary survey including area of the tract related to true meridian 
or United States Geological Survey grid north. 



ZONING ORDINANCE Page 8: 10  

(3)       Attorney's certificate showing the owner or owners of the subject 
property, marketable title to the subject property in such owner or 
owners, names the source of applicant's title or interest in the subject 
property, and the place of record of the latest instrument in the chain 
of title for each parcel constituting the tract. 

 

(4) Total area of the tract. 
 

(5) Abutting street names, width and route numbers. 
 

(6) Owners, zoning districts and uses of each adjoining tract. 
 

(7)     Topographic map with minimum contour intervals and scale 
acceptable to the administrator. 

 

b. Concept design information: 
 

(1)       A concept plan, illustrating the location and functional relationship 
between all proposed land uses. 

 

(2)       Land use plan or plans showing the location and arrangement of all 
proposed land uses, including the height and number of floors of 
all buildings (other than one family and two family dwellings) both 
above and below finished grade; the building setbacks from the 
development boundaries and adjacent streets, roads, alleys and ways; 
the proposed traffic circulation pattern including the location and 
width of all streets, driveways, walkways and entrances to parking 
areas; all off street parking and loading areas; all proposed open 
space areas including common open space, dedicated open space, 
and developed recreational open space; the approximate location of 
existing and proposed utility systems of sanitary sewer, storm sewer, 
water, electrical, telephone and gas lines. 

 

(3)       A plan or statement showing the location and design of all screen- 
ing, and indicating the type and height of such screening. 

 

(4)       A plan or statement detailing the exact number of improved devel- 
oped recreational open space, and all covenants, restrictions and 
conditions pertaining to the use, maintenance and operation of 
common spaces and the percentage of the tract to be used as open 
space. 

 

(5)      For a PUD or PMH district, a statement in tabular form of the 
anticipated residential density and the total number of dwelling units, 
the percentage of the tract which is to be occupied by structures, and 
the total floor area (commercial) of all commercial uses. 

 

(6)      For PSC district, a statement in tabular form of the anticipated 
commercial floor area. 

 

(7)      Architectural sketches of typical proposed structures, including 
lighting fixtures and signs, and landscaping. 



ZONING ORDINANCE Page 8: 11  

(8)      When the development is to be constructed in stages or units, a 
sequence of the development schedule showing the order of con- 
struction of each principal functional element of such stages or units, 
the approximate completion date for each stage or unit, and a cost 
estimate of all improvements within each stage or unit. 

 

(9)       A plan or report indicating the extent, timing and estimated cost  of 
all  offsite  improvements,  such  as  road,  sewer  and  drainage 
facilities, necessary to construct the proposed development, which 
plan or report shall relate to the sequence of development schedule 
if the development is to be constructed in stages or units. 

 

(10)     A statement showing the relationship of the planned development 
to the comprehensive plan of the city. 

 

(11)     Where required by planning commission, a traffic impact analysis, 
showing the effect of traffic generated by the project on sur- 
rounding roads. 

 

(12)     Where required by planning commission, a fiscal impact analysis, 
listing city revenue generated by the project and city expenditures 
resulting from the construction of the project. 

 
 
 
N. REZONING TO PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 

1.   All terms, conditions, safeguards and stipulations made at the time of the rezoning to 
planned development status, including the approval of the concept plan, with or without 
specified modifications, shall be binding upon the applicant or any successors in 
interest.   Deviations from approved plans or failure to comply with any requirements, 
conditions or safeguards shall constitute a violation of these zoning regulations. 

 

2.   The granting of the planned development rezoning, and the approval of the concept 
plan, with or without specified modifications, shall not constitute the recording of a plat 
nor shall it authorize the issuance of building permits.  Such action shall be undertaken 
only after the approval of the site plan and the recording of a plat. 

 
 
 
O. SITE PLANS: 

 

1. Approval of the concept plan and the application for rezoning shall constitute authority 
for the applicant to prepare site plans in accordance with Article XVI of this ordinance, 
and in conformity with the approved development plan. 

 

2. The site plans shall be for the entire project, unless the project is staged, in which case 
the site plans for the first stage shall be submitted. 

 

3. A site plan for a particular development stage, other than the first, shall not be approved 
until construction has been initiated on the immediately preceding stage or unit. 



ZONING ORDINANCE Page 8: 12  

4. Minor deviations from the concept plan shall be permitted in the site plan when the 
director of development determines that such are necessary due to require- ments of 
topography, drainage, structural safety or vehicular circulation; and such deviations will 
not materially alter the character of the approved concept plan, including the proposed 
development sequence.  In no case shall such deviations include  the  addition  or  
elimination  of  any  building  shown  on  the  approved concept plan, increase the 
density of a PUD or PMH development or increase the floor area of a PSC development.  
Any changes not authorized by this paragraph shall require resubmission of the concept 
plan in accordance with the procedures contained in this Article. 

 

5. The first site plan shall be submitted within one (1) year after the date of approval of 
the development plan.   If a site plan is not submitted within said period, approval of the 
concept plan, and consequent authority to submit a site plan, shall terminate any 
development by the applicant in accordance with the PUD, PMH and PSC regulations, 
and shall require a resubmission of a concept plan in accordance with the procedures 
set forth in this section.  Within thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of said one (1) 
year period, the applicant may apply to the city manager for an extension of time within 
which to submit a site plan in conformity with the approved concept plan.   The city 
manager may grant such extension, upon good cause shown by the applicant, but 
extension shall not under any circumstances exceed an additional one (1) year period; 
and no more than two (2) such extensions may be granted.  If such application is denied, 
approval of the concept plan, and consequent authority to submit a site plan, shall 
terminate at the end of said one (1) year period.   Upon termination of authority to 
develop as herein provided, the city council may initiate a reclassification of the subject 
property to an appropriate zoning district other than PUD, PMH or PSC. 

 

6. No building permit shall be issued for any building or structure not indicated on the 
approved site plan. 



 
PH-2 

 



 
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor  Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Anthony J. Zevgolis, Ward #3   □ □ Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine E. Gore, Ward #4 

 
  

       
  

 

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 

Consent Agenda    
Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Spot Blight Public Hearing 
 
ISSUE: City Staff has reviewed eight properties that qualify for demolition, rehabilitation, and/or 
acquisition through the Spot Blight Ordinance. Staff is recommending the demolition of five of the eight 
structures.  Of the five, two property owners agreed that they need to be demolished and have requested 
the opportunity to hire a contractor to pay for the demolition.  The remaining three would be demolished 
by the City. The three remaining properties are placed on hold as the property owner and property 
management team would like more time to consider rehabilitation. It should be noted that one of the 
properties is deteriorating rapidly and is in danger of being declared eminent danger by the Building 
Official.  If so declared by the Building Official, per the Code of Virginia, the structure can be torn 
down immediately, without approval from City Council.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Administration recommends City Council consider citizen comments 
regarding the structures and vote on whether to demolish, acquire or rehabilitate the structures.  
 
TIMING:   The public hearing will be held on June 12, 2018.  
 
BACKGROUND:  The Spot Blight Ordinance was adopted September 9, 2014.  The approval of the 
Spot Blight Ordinance was an action identified in the City Council’s Strategic Plan.   The proposed list 
was gathered through past derelict building inventory, the vacant building registry, and routine 
inspections.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   Improve property values in immediate neighborhood by rehabilitating or 
removing blighted properties.  
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:   Pictures of each property 
            Property scoring spread sheet 
 

 



 
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor  Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Anthony J. Zevgolis, Ward #3   □ □ Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine E. Gore, Ward #4 

 
  

       
  

 

STAFF:         Tevya W. Griffin, Director, Department of Development 
             Todd Hawkes, Building Official 
  
                       
  

                 
                  



SPOT BLIGHT SCORING SHEET June 12, 2018 Public Hearing

Sub-parcel No. Address of Blighted Structure Circa Sq. ft
Director of 

Development
Fire 

Official
Building 
Official

Building 
Inspector

Senior 
Planner 

Average 
Score Ward 

Taxes owed to 
City lien Recommendation

110165 110 NORTH 3RD ST 1946 860 56 55 54 52 46 53 1 953.39 300 On Hold See Presentation

730395 2110 FREEMAN ST 1954 1296 57 55 55 58 60 57 2 0 0 Demolish

110930 401 W CAWSON 1947 1124 37 55 44 54 51 48 1 0 300 On Hold See Presentation

340205 2002 STEWART AVE 1951 864 59 60 58 58 60 59 6 250.94 300 Owner will Demolish

730305 2115 TRENTON ST 1968 1110 54 60 55 54 60 57 6 0 0 Demolish

730785 2304 BOSTON ST 1958 996 52 54 54 56 60 55 6 0 0 Demolish

470155 2904 WINSTON CHURCHILL DR 1951 818 57 60 58 55 57 57 6 45.34 0 Owner will Demolish

110160 108 NORTH 3RD ST 1947 1066 56 58 58 56 52 56 1 0 0 On Hold See Presentation



Spot Blight Public Hearing
Hopewell City Council Meeting 

June 12, 2018



Housing in the City

 Issues Identified in the Community Survey

 Owner and Rental Occupancy

 Housing Vacancy

 Age of Housing

 Housing Affordability

 Maintenance/ Up-keep

 Diversity in Housing Stock

 Quality of Housing



Housing Goals identified in 
2028 Comprehensive Plan
 Upgrade deteriorating neighborhoods; 

 Promote home ownership; 

 Provide a variety of housing choices; 

 Establish programs that incentivize green construction;

 Discontinue and/or relocate nonconforming housing units to 
compatible land uses;

 Market the City to the broader Richmond region;

 Establish safe and healthy neighborhoods



Responsibility of City 
Departments

Safety
Blight – Crime
Design
Preservation
Quality
Desirability
Affordability

Tools

 Property Maintenance

 Protective Maintenance

 Declaration of Eminent 
Danger

 Low income housing 
rehabilitation for homeowners

 Tax abatement

 Vacant Building Registry

 Historic Preservation

 Declare Nuisance/Unfit 
Unsafe

 Zone Incentives

 Economic Development

 Rental Inspection Program

 Architectural Guidelines 

 Ordinance Amendments



Housing Strategies 
 Decentralizing poverty

 Improve existing housing for low income households by replacing
substandard low income housing units with new units.

 Create housing revitalization districts in the City in accordance with
provisions afforded in the Code of Virginia.

 Create neighborhood based planning efforts that promote
neighborhood small area plans, revitalization and a sense of
community/place.

 Continue to phase out housing that is adjacent to environmental
undesirable locations, located in non-residential zoning districts (i.e.
residential housing located in a business or industrial district), and
that are considered non-conforming residential units (i.e. mobile
homes)



Housing Strategies…continued

 Increase efforts to enforce property maintenance codes for 
all housing units, with a focus on rental housing. 

 Create or support programs aimed at increasing the owner-
occupied share of City housing.  

 Enact zoning regulations that encourage an increased 
variety of housing types and prices in order to appeal to a 
wider demographic spectrum, including a range of market-
rate, higher density dwellings, retirement housing, quality 
rental dwellings, and mixed-use and live/work residences. 

 Actively promote Hopewell to homebuyers within the 
region.

 Consider the implementation of a Community Land Trust 
for Hopewell.



Spot Blight

 Answers the call for:
Safety
Removing Blight-Crime
Providing Quality Housing 
Increasing Desirability to move into the 

community and for others to maintain their 
property. 





Spot Blight List 
 38 blighted buildings

 6 blighted buildings  have been rehabbed as a result of being 
placed on the spot blight list. 

 3 properties are in the process of rehabilitation. 

 5 blighted buildings were demolished by the owner. 

 4 blighted buildings were demolished by the City. 

 8 are being considered for demolition, acquisition or 
rehabilitation tonight.

 Staff is recommending demolition of 5 of the 3 structures. 

 Remaining 12 are being processed by inspectors and have not yet 
been scored. 



Score 59

2002 Stewart Avenue

Update since May 22

City Council Meeting:

Owners have obtained 
a demolition permit.  



Score 57

2904 Winston 
Churchill

Update since May 22

City Council Meeting:

Property is being 
purchased.  The 
blighted structure will 
be demolished by the 
new owner. 



Score 53 110 North 3rd Avenue

Owner will meet with 
Building Official and 
provide rehabilitation 
plan. 



Score 57 

2110 Freeman Street



Score 48

401 West Cawson

Since the May 22, 2018 meeting, the 
Ford Agency has come forward  and 
would like to speak with the owners 
family to determine next steps for the 
home.  Staff will bring this property 
back to City Council at a later time. 



Score 57 

2115 Trenton Street



Score 55

2304 Boston Street



Score 56 108 North 3rd Avenue

Owner will meet with 
Building Official and provide 

rehabilitation plan. 



Missing Links – Acquisition and 
Rehabilitation Program

 Staff does not recommend demolition for buildings that 
score below 45.  Staff currently speaks with investors that 
request spot blight list through FOIA, recommending 
contact with property owner. 

 Establish program and funding source for acquisition and 
rehabilitation.  This work has started. 

 Partner with local and regional housing efforts.

 Research and consider establishing revitalization zones and 
a land trust.



Thank you



 
PH-3 

 



 
 

CITY OF HOPEWELL 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
           
Hopewell City Council will hold a public hearing, pursuant to Virginia Code § 22-29.1 (Public hearing 
before appointment of school board members), Tuesday, June 12, 2018 at 7:30 PM, in City Council 
Chambers, 300 N. Main Street, Hopewell, Virginia, to receive public comments regarding nominees 
or applicants to the Hopewell School Board to fill one term, commencing on July 1, 2018 and ending 
June 30, 2021.   
            
Contact the City Clerk at 804-541-2408 with questions. 
 

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION EMPLOYER 
 

 



 
  
 COMMUNICATIONS   
     FROM CITIZENS 

 



REPORTS 
OF THE 

CITY 
MANAGER 

 



 
R-1 

 
 



Council Action Form  2017        
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda S. Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Tony Zevgolis, Ward #3    □ □ Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

       
  

R-1 
June 12, 2018 

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 
    Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
 Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

 Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
  
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:    FY 2019 Operating and Capital Budgets 
 
ISSUE:  Approval and adoption of the FY 2018-2019 Operating and Capital 
Improvement Budgets 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   Resolve to Approve the FY 2019 Operating and Capital 
Improvement Budgets 
 
TIMING:    City Council is required to adopt an operating budget on or before June 30, 
2018.  Additionally, action is requested to provide for adequate time for Human 
Resources and Payroll to input information into the City’s payroll system, so that the 
proposed 2% COLA will be effective for the first pay period of the new fiscal year, the 
information needs to be entered into the payroll system by June 20, 2018. 
 
BACKGROUND:   A public hearing was held to consider the adoption of the FY 19 
Operating Budget at the May 8, 2018 City Council.  The City Manager’s Proposed 
Budget includes the City absorbing the full cost of the healthcare increase and a 2% 
COLA for all full-time and permanent part-time City employees.  The budget also 
includes funding to address community based programming at the Beacon Theatre and to 
begin repayment of funds related to the CSA program.  After conducting the public 
hearing to solicit citizen input on the proposed budget, City Council debated the budget 
request and determined to move forward with the adoption of the School Board budget.  
During the public hearing only one (1) citizen spoke.  City Council subsequently 
approved the absorption of the full cost of the healthcare increase at the May 22, 2018 
Council meeting.  City Council discussed the proposed capital improvement budget at its 

 



 1 

BUDGET RESOLUTION 
FISCAL YEAR 2018-19 

 
WHEREAS, at the meeting of the City Council of the City of Hopewell held on June 5, 

2018, a budget of the estimated revenues and expenditures for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 
2018, and ending June 30, 2019, showing the expenditures of the preceding year, the amount 
appropriated for the current year, and the proposed expenditures for the ensuing twelve months 
was introduced in its complete form; of which $127,594,017 is estimated to be received from 
sources other than property tax levies, leaving a balance to be raised by levies on property 
segregated to the City for local taxes of $34,242,081 and, 
 

WHEREAS, a tax rate sufficient to raise the last mentioned sum has been levied by 
ordinance of the City Council of the City of Hopewell; and, 
 

WHEREAS, in this budget approved by City Council there are estimates of revenues 
used for appropriated expenditures to pay for said city services, and when said estimated 
revenues are projected by the City Manager to be less than the amount of appropriated 
expenditures, the City Manager shall initiate action to adjust appropriated expenditures to agree 
with revised estimated revenues.  The City Manager is directed to advise City Council, at the 
next scheduled meeting, of the adjustments made and City Council may amend said adjustments 
or offer alternatives as the appropriating body; and, 
 
BE IT, HEREBY, RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Hopewell: 
 
 
Sec. 1 The following funds and accounts shall be appropriated from the designated revenues 

to operate City services and to provide a capital improvement program for the City: 
 
 
General Fund-011:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  From Local Sources 
 

  
    General Property Taxes ..........................................................................  

 
$34,242,081  

    Other Local Taxes ..................................................................................  
 

6,106,769  
    Licenses, Permits, Fees ..........................................................................  851,000  
    Fines & Forfeitures ................................................................................  1,628,500  
    Use of Money/Property………………………………………………. 55,000  
    In-Lieu of Taxes………………………………………………………. 1,261,000  
    Other Local Revenues ............................................................................  300,000 

 
 
 

  
 
 

 
  

  From Other Agencies 
 

  
    State Sources ..........................................................................................  6,786,182 
    Federal Sources ......................................................................................  200,000  
 

 
 



 2 

 
  Cost Recovery & Reserves  

 
  

    Cost Recovery from Social Services-012 ..............................................  507,000  
    Cost Recovery from Solid Waste-030 ...................................................  

 
598,040  

    Cost Recovery from Sewer Services-031 ..............................................  
 

382,500  
    Use of Reserve Funds ............................................................................  0  
    Total Revenues .......................................................................................  $52,918,072  
 

 
  

Appropriations: 
 

 
General Government: .................................................................................  

 
  

  City Council .............................................................................................  272,214  
  City Clerk .................................................................................................  172,459  
  City Attorney ...........................................................................................  340,200  
  City Manager ...........................................................................................  1,314,999  
  Information Technology ..........................................................................  978,426  
  Human Resources ....................................................................................  457,042  
  Finance Department  ................................................................................  1,599,614  
  Development Department ........................................................................  946,569  
  Non-Departmental ....................................................................................  435,000 
Courts:   
  Circuit Court ............................................................................................  66,734  
  General District Court ..............................................................................  138,939  
  Court Services ..........................................................................................  7,000  
  VJCCCA Grant ........................................................................................  158,474  
  Crater Detention Facility ..........................................................................  363,000  
  Regional Jail .............................................................................................  1,935,248 
Constitutional Offices:   
  Clerk of Circuit Court ..............................................................................  459,611  
  Commonwealth Attorney .........................................................................  631,336  
  Commissioner of Revenue .......................................................................  472,410  
  Sheriff ......................................................................................................  1,471,669  
  Treasurer ..................................................................................................           517,436  
Voter Registrar ...........................................................................................  222,135  
Police Department ......................................................................................  7,783,724 
Fire Department .........................................................................................  4,946,538 
Public Works Department ..........................................................................  5,121,810  
Health Department .....................................................................................  229,183  
Outside Agencies .......................................................................................  1,648,105  
Operating Transfers ...................................................................................  19,728,197  
Contingency ...............................................................................................  500,000  
   Total General Fund  ................................................................................  $52,918,072 
 
 



 3 

Social Services Fund-012:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  From State  Sources ...............................................................................  $1,947,896  
  From Federal Sources ............................................................................  2,779,087 
  Transfer from General Fund-011 ...........................................................  918,156  
  Total Revenues ......................................................................................  $5,645,139  
 

 
  

Appropriations: 
 

  
  Administration .......................................................................................  1,087,582  
  Eligibility ...............................................................................................  4,557,557  
  Total Social Services Fund ....................................................................  

 
$5,645,139 

 
Community Services Act Fund-015:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  From State Sources ................................................................................  $2,500,913  
  Transfer from General Fund-011 ...........................................................  608,227  
  Total Revenues ......................................................................................  $3,109,140  
 

 
  

Appropriations: 
 

  
  Administration .......................................................................................  153,586  
  Direct Services .......................................................................................  2,955,554  
  Total Community Services Act Fund ....................................................  $3,109,140 

 
Recreation Fund-035:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  Fees & Charges ......................................................................................  $198,550  
  Transfer from General Fund-011 ...........................................................  1,583,694  
  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  $1,782,244   
   
Appropriations: 

 
  

  Recreation Center Div............................................................................  689,276  
  Community Div .....................................................................................  121,353  
  Athletics Div ..........................................................................................  140,807 
  Seniors Div.............................................................................................  146,317 
  Pool Div .................................................................................................  220,394 
  Parks Div ................................................................................................  456,899 
  Grants .....................................................................................................  7,198  
  Total Recreation Fund............................................................................  $1,782,244 

 
 
 
 
 



 4 

Harbor Fund-038:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  Rentals....................................................................................................  $20,000   
  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  

 
$20,000  

 
 

  
Appropriations: 

 
  

  Insurance ................................................................................................  
 

5,000  
  Operating Expenses ...............................................................................   15,000  
  Total Riverside Harbor Fund .................................................................  

 
$20,000 

 
 
Self Insurance Fund-076:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  Transfer from General Fund-011 ...........................................................   $500,000  
  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  $500,000  

  
Appropriations:   
  Property/Liability Insurance Premiums .................................................  500,000  
  Total Self Insurance Fund ......................................................................  

 
$500,000 

  
Anti-Litter Fund-053:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  From State Sources ................................................................................  
 

$6,063  
  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  $6,063  

  
Appropriations: 

 
  

  Operating Expenses ...............................................................................  
 

6,063 
 

 
  Total Anti-Litter Fund............................................................................  

 
$6,063 

  
Cemetery Fund-003:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  Interest Income.......................................................................................  
 

$6,000  
  Grave Site Sales .....................................................................................  39,000  
  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  

 
$45,000   

 
Appropriations: 

 
  

  Repairs ...................................................................................................  
 

12,500  
  Grass Cutting .........................................................................................  

 
27,000  

  Miscellaneous ........................................................................................  
 

5,500  
  Total Cemetery Fund .............................................................................  

 
$45,000 

 
 
 



 5 

School Operating Fund-014:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  From State Sources ................................................................................  
 

28,250,669  
  From Federal Sources ............................................................................  

 
4,396,443  

  Other Revenues ......................................................................................  
 

1,207,338  
  Transfer from General Fund-011 ...........................................................  

 
14,264,679  

  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  
 

$48,119,129  
 
 

 
  

Appropriations: 
 

  
  Non-Categorical .....................................................................................  

 
48,119,129  

  Total School Operating Fund .................................................................  
 

$48,119,129 
 
School Textbook Fund-056:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  From State Sources ................................................................................  
 

$650,000  
  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  

 
$650,000  

 
 

  
Appropriations: 

 
  

  Text Book Purchases..............................................................................  
 

650,000  
  Total School Textbook Fund .................................................................  

 
$650,000 

 
School Cafeteria Fund-057:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  From Federal Sources ............................................................................  
 

$3,142,912  
  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  

 
$3,142,912   

 
Appropriations: 

 
  

  Operating Expenses ...............................................................................  
 

3,142,912  
  Total School Cafeteria Fund ..................................................................  

 
$3,142,912 

 
School Bldg/Bus Replacement Fund-063:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  Transfer from School Operating Fund-014............................................  $1,354,679  
  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  

 
$1,354,679  

 
 

  
Appropriations: 

 
  

  Appropriations .......................................................................................  1,354,679  
  Total School Bldg/Bus Replacement Fund ............................................  

 
$1,354,679 

 
 
 
 
 



 6 

Solid Waste Fund-030:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  Fees & Charges ......................................................................................  
 

$2,159,838  
  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  

 
$2,159,838  

 
 

  
Appropriations: 

 
  

  Curb-Side Pickup ...................................................................................  
 

1,966,156  
  Convenience Center ...............................................................................  

 
193,682  

  Total Solid Waste Fund .........................................................................  
 

$2,159,838 
 
Sewer Operations Fund-040:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  Charges for Services ..............................................................................  
 

$8,479,425  
  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  

 
$8,479,425  

 
 

  
Appropriations: 

 
  

  Transfer to Sewer Maintenance Fund-041 .............................................  6,849,966  
  Transfer to Sewer Bond Fund-043 .........................................................  1,629,459  
  Total Sewer Operations Fund ................................................................  

 
$8,479,425 

  
Sewer Maintenance Fund-041:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  Transfer from Sewer Operations Fund-040 ...........................................  
 

$6,849,966  
  Interest Income.......................................................................................  

 
138,509  

  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  
 

$6,988,475 
 

  
 
Appropriations: 

 
  

  Maintenance & Inspections....................................................................  1,240,305  
  City Pump Stations ................................................................................  4,620,416  
  Capital ....................................................................................................  1,127,754  
  Total Sewer Maintenance Fund .............................................................  $6,988,475 

 
Sewer Bond Fund-043:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  Transfer from Sewer Operations Fund-040 ...........................................  
 

$1,629,459  
  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  

 
$1,629,459 

 
  
 
Appropriations: 

 
  

  Bond Principal .......................................................................................  505,000  
  Bond Interest ..........................................................................................  1,124,459  
  Total Sewer Bond Fund .........................................................................  $1,629,459 

 
 



 7 

Storm Water Fund #1-048:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  Storm Water Fees ...................................................................................  
 

$867,000  
  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  

 
$867,000 

 
  
 
Appropriations: 

 
  

  Operating Expenses ...............................................................................  867,000  
  Total Storm Water Fund #1 ...................................................................  $867,000 

 
Storm Water Fund #2-049:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  Storm Water Fees ...................................................................................  
 

$250,000  
  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  

 
$250,000 

 
  
 
Appropriations: 

 
  

  Operating Expenses ...............................................................................  250,000  
  Total Storm Water Fund #2 ...................................................................  $250,000 

 
HRWTF Fund-032:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  Industrial User Charges..........................................................................  
 
$17,658,365  

  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  
 
$17,658,365  

 
 

  
Appropriations: 

 
  

  Operating Expenses ...............................................................................  
 

17,658,365  
  Total HRWTF Fund ...............................................................................  $17,658,365 

 
Capital Projects Fund-071:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  Food Tax ................................................................................................  $2,300,000  
  Lodging Tax ...........................................................................................  

 
850,000  

  Soc Ser Amortization .............................................................................  
 

180,516  
  Interest Income.......................................................................................  

 
109,845  

  Transfer from General Fund-011 ...........................................................  
 

1,000,000  
  Transfer from General Fund I-295 .........................................................  

 
800,000  

  Grant Fund .............................................................................................  
 

100,000  
  Fund-071 Revenue .................................................................................  902,932  
  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  

 
$6,243,293  

 
 

  
Appropriations: 

 
  

  Debt Service ...........................................................................................  
 

4,655,277  
  Debt Service Fees ..................................................................................  6,700 

 
 

 
  
 



 8 

 
  Capital Projects:   
  IT-Munis Upgrade, Additional Storage City-wide ................................  

 
40,000  

  IT-Disaster Recovery System ................................................................  120,000 
 
 

 
  Sheriff-Annual Contract to Taser...........................................................  20,000  
  Police-2 Marked Sedans ........................................................................  

 
63,902  

  Fire-Contract Payment-Fire Trucks (Existing) ......................................  162,414 
 
 

 
  Public Works-VDOT Projects ...............................................................  850,000  
  Public Works-Replace Courthouse Roof ...............................................  

 
          125,000 125 

  Rec & Parks-Woodlawn Park Renovation .............................................  160,000 
 
 

 
  Development-Chapter 18 Violations (Tall grass/weeds/trash/debris) ...  40,000 
  Total Debt/Capital Projects Fund.............................................................  $6,243,293 

 
 
Economic Development Fund-075:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  Transfer from General Fund-011 ...........................................................  
 

$38,440  
  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  

 
$38,440  

 
 

  
Appropriations: 

 
  

  Operating Expenses ...............................................................................  
 

38,440  
    Total Economic Development Fund ....................................................  

 
$38,440   

Healthy Families Fund-090: 
  

Estimated Revenues: 
 

  
  Transfer from General Fund-011 ...........................................................  

 
$38,440  

  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  
 

$38,440  
 

 
  

Appropriations: 
 

  
  Operating Expenses ...............................................................................  

 
38,440  

    Total Economic Development Fund ....................................................  
 

$38,440   
 

 
  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  Donations ...............................................................................................  
 

$214,425  
  Transfer from General Fund-011 ...........................................................  

 
15,000  

  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  
 

$229,425   
 
Appropriations: 

 
  

  Appropriations .......................................................................................  
 

229,425  
    Total Healthy Families Fund ...............................................................  

 
$229,425 

 
Sec.  2 Constitutional Officers and respective Constitutional Office employees shall receive 

the position salary approved by the Virginia Compensation Board or granted by the 
Virginia General Assembly.  No Constitutional Officer shall be compensated for any 
vacation, sick, holiday, jury service, military leave, funeral leave or other paid time-
off granted to city employees. 

 
Sec.  3 Appropriations in addition to those contained in the general appropriation resolution 

may be made by the City Council only if there is available in the fund an 
unencumbered and unappropriated sum sufficient to meet such appropriation. 

 



 9 

Sec.  4 Except as set forth in Sections 7, 14, 16, 17, 18, and 19 the City Manager may, as 
provided herein, authorize the transfer of any unencumbered balance or portion 
thereof from one classification of expenditure to another within the same department 
or appropriation function/category.  The City Manager may transfer up to $25,000 
from the unencumbered balance of the appropriation of one appropriation 
function/category to another appropriation function/category.  No more than one 
transfer may be made for the same item causing the need for a transfer. 

 
Sec.  5 The City Manager may increase appropriations for the following items of non-

budgetary revenue that may occur during the fiscal year: 
 

a. Insurance recoveries received for damage to City vehicles or other property for 
which City funds have been expended to make repairs. 

b. Refunds or reimbursements made to the City for which the City has expended 
funds directly related to that refund or reimbursement. 

c. Any revenue source not to exceed $25,000. 
 

Sec.  6 All outstanding encumbrances, both operating and capital, at June 30, 2018 shall be 
re-appropriated to the 2018-19 fiscal year to the same department and account for 
which they are encumbered in the previous year.  

 
Sec.  7 At the close of the fiscal year, all unencumbered appropriations lapse for budget items 

other than Capital Projects, reserves, grants, and donations restricted to specific 
purposes. 

             
Sec.  8 Appropriations for capital projects will not lapse at the end of the fiscal year but shall 

remain appropriations until the completion of the projects or until the City Council, 
by appropriate ordinance or resolution, changes or eliminates the appropriation.  The 
City Manager may approve necessary accounting transfers between funds to enable 
the capital projects to be accounted for in the correct manner.  Upon completion of a 
capital project, staff is authorized to close out the projects and transfer to the funding 
source any remaining balances.  This section applies to all existing appropriations for 
Capital Projects at June 30, 2018 and appropriations in the 2018-19 budget year.  The 
City Manager may approve construction change orders to contracts up to an increase 
of $25,000 and approve all change orders for reductions to contracts. 

 
Sec.  9 The City Manager may authorize the transfer of Sewer Services Capital Projects 

funds that are 20% or up to $100,000 of the original project cost, whichever is less, 
from any Sewer Services Capital Project to any other Sewer Services Capital Project 
or to the original funding source.  Should the actual contract price for a project be 
significantly (over $100,000) less than the appropriation, the City Manager may 
approve transfer of excess funds to the funding source prior to completion of the 
project. 

 



 10 

Sec. 10 The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to apply for and accept all city 
eligible grants which require no local match money to receive without further City 
Council action. 

 
  City Manager is further authorized to apply for and accept eligible grants of $50,000 

or less and with up to fifty (50) percent or less of the total dollar grant amount match 
requirement.  City Manager is authorized to use current budget appropriated funds 
towards any local match required. 

 
  Any grant application/award greater than $50,000 must be approved by Council prior 

to the city administration making application. 
 
  The City Manager is hereby authorized to sign and execute all necessary documents 

for the acceptance of any city grant approved by Council. 
 
Sec. 11 City Council approval of any grant of funds to the City constitutes the appropriation 

of both the revenue to be received from the grant and the city's expenditure required 
by the terms of the grant, if any.  The appropriation of grant funds will not lapse at the 
end of the fiscal year, but shall remain appropriated until completion of the project or 
until Council, by appropriate resolution, changes or eliminates the appropriation.   

 
  The City Manager may reduce any grant appropriation to the level approved by the 

granting agency during the fiscal year.  The City Manager may approve necessary 
accounting transfers between accounts to enable the grant to be accounted for in the 
correct manner.  Upon completion of a grant project, staff is authorized to close out 
the grant and transfer back to the funding source any unspent remaining balances.  
This applies to appropriations for grants outstanding at June 30, 2018 and 
appropriations in the 2018-19 budget year. 

 
Sec. 12 The City Manager may appropriate both revenue and expenditure for donations made 

by citizens or citizen groups in support of city programs.  Any remaining 
unencumbered balance of a restricted donation at the end of the fiscal year will be re-
appropriated into the subsequent fiscal year for the same purpose. 

 
Sec. 13 The City Manager may reduce revenue and expenditure appropriations related to 

programs funded all or in part by the Commonwealth of Virginia and/or the federal 
government to the level approved by the responsible state or federal agency. 

 
Sec. 14 The Director of Finance is authorized to make transfers to the various funds for which 

there are transfers budgeted.  The Director shall transfer funds only as needed up to 
amounts budgeted, or in accordance with any existing bond resolutions that specify 
the manner in which transfer are to be made. 

 
Sec. 15 The City Treasurer may advance monies to and from the various funds of the City to 

allow maximum cash flow efficiency.  The advances must not violate city bond 
covenants or other legal restrictions that would prohibit an advance. 



 11 

 
Sec. 16 The City Manager is authorized to make expenditures from Trust & Agency Funds 

for the specified reasons for which the funds were established. In no case shall the 
expenditure exceed the available balance in the fund. 

 
Sec. 17 The City Manager may appropriate revenues and increase expenditures for funds 

received by the City from asset forfeitures for operating expenditures directly related 
to drug enforcement.  This applies to funds currently on-hand at June 30, 2018, and 
all funds received in the 2018-19 budget year, shall not lapse but be carried forward 
into the next fiscal year. 

 
Sec. 18 After completion of all necessary audit transactions for the General Fund, the City 

Manager may increase appropriations or authorize transfers of existing appropriation 
at June 30 as follows: 
 
a. Subsequent to all audit adjustments and the ending general fund balance is  
maintained at maximum of 10% of general fund expenditures, transfer all available  
current year operation funds to the unassigned fund balance of the Capital Projects  
Fund for future capital projects. 
 
b. At year-end, any budgeted Fire Department appropriations in excess of actual  
expenditures for the year shall be transferred to a reserve account for future fire  
equipment purchases. This applies to funds on-hand at June 30, 2018, and all funds 
received in the 2018-19 budget year. 

 
Sec. 19 The City Manager is authorized to reallocate funding sources for Capital Projects, 

arbitrage rebates/penalties, and debt services payments and to appropriate bond 
interest earning to minimize arbitrage rebates/penalties.  This authority would include 
the appropriation of transfers among funds to accomplish such reallocation.  Budgets 
for specific Capital Projects will not be increased beyond the level authorized by 
sections 4 and 5.This applies to funds currently on-hand in at June 30, 2018 and all 
funds received in the FY 2018-19 budget year. 

 
Sec. 20 The City Manager is authorized to transfer among appropriation categories any 

amount of funds associated with implementation of the VJCCCA Grant to record 
transactions.  

 
Sec. 21 The City Manager is authorized to transfer among appropriation categories any 

amount of monies associated with implementation of the Comprehensive Services 
Act for at-risk youth and families, but the local city match appropriation shall be 
reduced to the amount required to match the original state approved budget.  Any 
supplemental budget request for funding shall be presented to Council for 
appropriation. 

 
Sec. 22 The City Manager is authorized to disburse state Four-For-Life Program funding to 

the Hopewell Emergency Crew for authorized expenditures or to disburse funds 



 12 

between the Hopewell Emergency Crew and the Hopewell Bureau of Fire, all in the 
best interest of providing emergency services to Hopewell.  Amount of funds 
authorized to be disbursed shall not exceed the state funding award. 

 
Sec. 23 The City Manager is authorized, upon approval of Council, to transfer among 

appropriation categories any amount of monies associated with implementation of the 
Department of Social Services budget for services, but the local city match 
appropriation shall be reduced to the amount required to match the original state 
approved budget.  Any supplemental budget request for funding shall be presented to 
city council for appropriation. 

 
Sec. 24 Effective upon adoption of this resolution, the City Manager is authorized to approve 

transfers within operating funds as long as total net spending is not exceeded, and all 
transfer activity is to be reported to Council on a monthly basis. 

 
Sec. 25 The City Manager is hereby authorized, upon approval of Council, to reassign or 

reallocate any full-time authorized position within the authorized fund complement of 
positions to a lower or higher grade after the City Classification and Compensation 
Study Committee has approved the job evaluation and made its recommendation to 
the City Manager. This authority is not to be construed as giving the City Manager 
authority to create or increase the authorized full-time City work force. Council 
reserves to itself the authority to increase or decrease the authorized full-time 
employee positions. 

  
Sec. 26 Effective July 1, 2018, the following will be the City share of health care cost from 

The Local Choice (Anthem):   
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 13 

Active Employees: 
 
  

High Deductible Health 
Plan (HDHP) with HSA* 

Employee Share 
(per pay) 

Employee Share 
(per month) 

City Share 
(per month) 

Total Premium 
(per month) 

Employee Only $35.63  $71.26  $392.74  $464.00  
Employee + Spouse $100.95  $201.90  $656.10  $858.00  
Employee + Child $83.40  $166.80  $691.20  $858.00  

Employee + Children $83.46  $166.92  $1,086.08  $1,253.00  
Employee + Family $166.80  $333.60  $919.40  $1,253.00  
Key Advantage 250 Employee Share Employee Share City Share Total Premium 

Employee Only $50.50  $101.00  $545.00  $646.00  
Employee + Spouse $151.31  $302.62  $892.38  $1,195.00  
Employee + Child $121.04  $242.08  $952.92  $1,195.00  

Employee + Children $120.98  $241.96  $1,502.04  $1,744.00  
Employee + Family $256.11  $512.22  $1,231.78  $1,744.00  

Key Advantage Expanded Employee Share Employee Share City Share Total Premium 
Employee Only $79.00  $158.00  $546.00  $704.00  

Employee + Spouse $204.31  $408.62  $893.38  $1,302.00  
Employee + Child $174.04  $348.08  $953.92  $1,302.00  

Employee + Children $197.98  $395.96  $1,505.04  $1,901.00  
Employee + Family $333.11  $666.22  $1,234.78  $1,901.00  
 
 
  
Retirees: 
 

20+ Years of Service (City Pays 30% of the total premium) 
Plan Retiree Share City Share Total Premium 
TLC Key Advantage Expanded $492.80 $211.20 $704.00 
TLC Key Advantage 250 $452.20 $193.80 $646.00 
TLC HDHP $324.80 $139.20 $464.00 
 

 
 

   15-19 Years of Service (City Pays 20% of the total premium) 
Plan Retiree Share City Share Total Premium 
TLC Key Advantage Expanded $563.20 $140.80 $704.00 
TLC Key Advantage 250 $516.80 $129.20 $646.00 
TLC HDHP $371.20 $92.80 $464.00 

    
    



 14 

Retirees hired before 7/1/03 retiring after 1/1/04: 
  Council authorizes and directs a policy change, effective July 1, 2017, that the City 

will continue to pay health insurance for the three spouses currently under the age of 
65 until those spouses turn 65.  The City will then cease payment of their health 
insurance. Also effective July 1, 2017, the City will continue to pay for the health 
care for the spouses of retirees until July 2018. Effective July 1, 2018, the City will 
pay 50% of the spousal coverage until June 30, 2019. Council authorizes and directs 
that effective July 1, 2019; the City will no longer pay any portion of health insurance 
costs for the spouses of any retirees.  

 
  Any city retiree eligible for Virginia Retirement System health insurance credit shall 

have the city health insurance contribution reduced by a dollar amount equal to the 
VRS eligible health insurance credit amount. The VRS health insurance credit shall 
be calculated by an amount equal to $1.50, or current rate approved by VRS, times 
the years of service with a maximum reduction amount of $45.00 dollars, or the 
maximum amount authorized by VRS. 

 
  City Manager is authorized and directed to terminate the health insurance coverage 

for any retiree who fails to pay the city their respective share of the health insurance 
premium and who is sixty (60) days delinquent on premium payments.  Any retiree 
who has their insurance coverage terminated for failure to pay their respective share 
of premium shall not be eligible for re-enrollment until the delinquent premiums are 
paid to the city and only at the next open enrollment period. 

 
Sec. 27 Council authorizes and directs that the City shall only pay such amount equal to the 

City contribution share of the premium cost as authorized in Sec. 26, above, and any 
additional insurance coverage costs selected by employee shall be paid by employee 
by payroll deduction in the month prior to the premium due date. 

 
  For any employee electing to enroll in the HSA plan of record, the city shall 

contribute the sum of $1,400.00 for single coverage and $2,700.00 for family 
coverage, to be paid monthly into employee HSA account; to include employee and 
child or employee and spouse, paid the second pay period of each month on the basis 
of 24 pays per year.  If employee is hired before 15th of month credit for that month 
is given, after 15th of month credit and contribution payments shall begin the 
following month, to the employee HSA established at the city bank of record for HSA 
accounts.   

 
Sec. 28 City Council authorizes and directs the employee contribution share (5%) of VRS 

pension contribution rate to be paid by all employees as of July 1, 2018 Employee 
share of VRS pension contribution shall be deducted on a bi-weekly basis on the 
assumption of 24 pays per year.  Contribution will be effective for the month in which 
it is deducted.  Prior to the 15th of the month, credit shall be given for the month and 
the monthly employee contribution shall be deducted. After the 15th of the month 
VRS deduction and credit shall begin 1st day the following month.  Elected 



 15 

Constitutional Officers shall pay the VRS 5% employee contribution on the same 
basis as city employee. 

 
Sec. 29 City Council authorizes a 2% cost-of -living pay increase, across the board, to all full-

time employees, including the constitutional officers and their employees. Permanent 
part-time employees shall be awarded a 2% cost-of-living pay increase as well. 
Seasonal part-time employees are not eligible. 

 
Sec. 30 City Council authorizes the VRS retirement multiplier for Hopewell Public Safety 

positions to change from 1.7% to 1.85%. 
 

--oo0oo-- 
 
 

I, Ronnieye L Arrington, City Clerk of the City of Hopewell, Virginia, do certify that the 
foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution of the City of Hopewell duly adopted on the 
5th day of June, 2018. 
 
 Given under my hand and the Corporate Seal of the City of Hopewell, Virginia, this 7th 
day of June, 2018. 
 
 
     /s/ Ronnieye L Arrington 
     Ronnieye L Arrington 
     City Clerk 
 
S E A L 
 



Council Action Form  2017        
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda S. Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Tony Zevgolis, Ward #3    □ □ Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

       
  

R-1 
June 12, 2018 

June 5, 2018 Special Meeting.  The budget has been revised to eliminate the three (3) 
proposed full-time positions. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   The Proposed FY 19 Operating Budget appropriates a total of 
approximately $164,464,000 across 30 funds.  The Proposed General Operating Fund is 
approximately $52,918,000.  The proposed budget submitted by the City Manager is 
balanced. 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:  Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Budget Resolution 
 
STAFF:    March Altman, City Manager 
  Michael Terry, Director of Finance 
     
 



 
R-2 

 
 



 
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor K. Wayne Walton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Anthony J. Zevgolis, Ward #3   □ □ Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine E. Gore, Ward #4 

 
  

       
  

 

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 

Consent Agenda    
Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Consider the 18-19 allocation for the Community 
Development Block Grant and set a public hearing for June 22, 2018 to consider citizen input.  
 
ISSUE:  The City of Hopewell has been notified that it will receive $177,848 in CDBG funding for the 
FY 2018-2019. City Staff has reviewed all applications for funding submitted by various agencies and 
have developed a proposed CDBG budget for City Council’s consideration.  City Administration 
provided City Council with three priorities for the 2015-2020 Consolidated Plan.  They are housing 
/homelessness, early childhood development, and elder care.  Funding recommendations for the 
upcoming year are based on these goals. The 18-19 Annual Action Plan describes the projects that will 
be funded in the fifth year of the Consolidated Plan.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  City Administration recommends the City Council consider citizen 
comments regarding the proposed allocation of the FY 2018-2019 budget on June 26, 2018.  City Staff 
recommends a meeting of the CDBG Committee prior to the June 26, 2018 public hearing to discuss the 
budget in detail and answer any specific questions.  
 
TIMING:   City Council action is requested on June 26, 2018.  
 
BACKGROUND:  The City of Hopewell is a HUD entitlement community. Each year the City receives 
funding through the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG).  Every five years the City must 
undergo a rigirous public input process to update the goals and priorities of the CDBG program.  This 
process was completed in 2014.  Each year a public hearing must be held by City Council to consider 
citizen comments regarding the proposed CDBG budget.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   None 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:    Attachment 1: Recommended Funding Schedule 

 



 
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor K. Wayne Walton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Anthony J. Zevgolis, Ward #3   □ □ Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine E. Gore, Ward #4 

 
  

       
  

 

             
STAFF:      Tevya W. Griffin, Director of Development 

Bill Dore, Housing and Grants Coordinator 
                

  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Community Development 

Block Grant Funding
Fiscal Year 2018-2019

1



Mission of HUD

HUD’s mission is to create strong, sustainable, inclusive communities

and 

quality affordable homes for all

2



Strategic Goals of the City Council 

(Adopted September 2014) 

Pertaining to CDBG Funding

 City Beautification 

 Rehabilitation of Housing

 Family Services including elderly and disabled

 Education, primarily adult and pre-school literacy

 Public Safety

3



Impact of Federal Budget Increases

 Increase in total funding of 8.5 percent or $15,172

 Public Service Funds increased $2,266 (capped at 15% of total allocation)

 Administrative funds increased $3,035 (capped at 20% of total allocation)

 Other funds are applied based on remaining amounts

4



FY 2018-2019 Proposed Budget

Budget Item Amount by 

Rule

Funding

Recommended

Change Comments

HUD Allocation $177,848 $177,848 0.0% No Comments

Public Service at 15% $26,677 $26,677 0.0% These items typically 

support homeless 

prevention, 

homelessness programs, 

victims of violence and 

potential child abuse 

and elderly projects

Administrative Planning $35,570 $35,570 0.0% Technical training of 

non-profits, numerous 

new HUD regulations to 

create operating 

procedures to be 

enacted, AFFH 

Requirement for next 5 

Year Plan

Capacity Building $23,000 $23,000 0.0% Provides funds to aid 

organizations and 

schools in helping at-risk 

children in getting 

reading materials and 

mentoring for life-long 

learning assistance and 

help neighborhood 

revitalization.

5



HOWEVER

Re-purposed Funds FY 2014-2015

and FY 2017-2018
 Re-appropriation of $13,210.00  from past infrastructure projects.

 Re-appropriation of $4,740.80 from Rebuilding Together Richmond (formerly 

Re-building Together Tri-Cities) 2017-18 project. 

 Total amount of re-appropriation into the CDBG 2018-19 budget is $17,950.83

 Total APPROPRIATION IS $195,798.83 for FY 2018-2019

6



FY 2018-2019 Proposed Budget

Budget Item Amount by 

Rule

Funding

Recommended

Change Comments

HUD Allocation $177,848 $195,798.83 10.0% No Comments

Public Service at 15% $26,677 $26,677 0.0% These items typically support 

homeless prevention, 

homelessness programs, victims 

of violence and potential child 

abuse and elderly projects

Administrative Planning $35,570 $35,570 0.0% Technical training of non-profits, 

numerous new HUD regulations 

to create operating procedures 

to be enacted. New FAIR

HOUSING ANALYSIS TO BE 

COMPLETED OF 9 MONTHS

Capacity Building $23,000 $36,475.33 58.6% Provides funds to aid 

organizations and schools in 

helping at-risk children in getting 

reading materials and mentoring 

for life-long learning assistance.

Remaining Balance for 

Housing Rehabilitation 

$94,476 $97,076.50 2.8% Rehabilitate Housing for

Qualified Owner-Occupants

7



2018-2019 Appropriation 

Recommendations

8



Public Service Funds

($26,667)

Recommended

Amount

Project Organization Description Goal

$4,825 Yellow Card 

Program

Hopewell Food 

Pantry

(CD911)

Provides food on a 

monthly basis to 

seniors and 

disabled persons in 

Hopewell

Family Services

$3,025 Respite Care 

Program – Elderly

Recs and Parks, 

City of Hopewell

(CD909)

Provides funds for 

recreation, day 

care, education 

and cultural

activities to the 

elderly  and 

disabled

Family Services –

Disabled and 

Elderly

$4,825 Home Visitation Hopewell-Prince 

Georges County 

Health Families

(CD905)

Provides funds for 

early intervention 

to reduce 

incidences of child 

abuse in “at-risk” 

households

Family Services

9



Public Service Funds

($24,401)

Recommended

Amount

Project Organization Description Goal

$3,127 Women’s and 

Children’s Shelters

CARES, Inc.

(CD906)

Provides funds to 

provide emergency 

shelter for homeless 

women and children

Family Services

$3,025 Domestic Violence

Intervention

The James House

(CD907)

Provides housing 

assistance and case 

management support 

for victims and 

families of violence.

Family Services

$3,925 Family Resource 

Center 

STORY (Formerly HRHA 

but now in a separate 

non-profit under HRHA 

umbrella (CD923)

Assists public housing 

residents in obtaining 

job skills as they work 

toward self-sufficiency

Family Services

$3,925 Permanent Supportive 

Housing

COMMONWEALTH

CATHOLIC CHARITIES 

(CD924)

Provides funds to 

prevent homelessness 

and to rapidly re-house 

households that have 

become homeless

Family Services

10



Capacity Building Funds

($36,475.33)

Recommended

Amount

Project Organization Description Goal

$19,355.16 Reading is Fun Community Action 

Program – Reading

(CD912)

Provides funds to 

aid organizations 

and schools in 

helping at-risk 

children in getting 

reading materials 

and mentoring for 

life-long learning 

assistance.

Improve literacy 

and decrease school 

drop-out rate. Helps 

in long-term 

neighborhood 

revitalization.

$17,120.17 Literacy Capacity 

Building

SMART BEGINNINGS 

(CD902)

Provides funds to 

aid organizations 

and schools in 

helping at-risk 

children in getting 

reading materials 

and mentoring for 

life-long learning 

assistance.

Improve literacy 

and decrease school 

drop-out rate. Helps 

in long-term 

neighborhood 

revitalization.
11



Housing Rehabilitation Funds

($97,076.50)

Recommended

Amount

Project Organization Description Goal

$48,538.25 Housing 

Rehabilitation

Rebuilding Together 

of Richmond

(CD920)

Provides grant funds 

to rehabilitate 

homes owned by 

income eligible 

homeowner 

households

City Beautification; 

Neighborhood 

Revitalization

$48,538.25 Emergency Housing 

Rehabilitation

PROJECT:  Homes

(CD919)

Provides grant funds 

to rehabilitate 

homes owned by 

income eligible 

homeowner 

households

City Beautification;

Neighborhood 

Revitalization

12



General Administrative Funds

($35,570)

Recommended

Amount

Project Organization Description Goal

$35,570 General 

Administration

City of Hopewell-

Department of 

Development

(CD901)

Provides funds to 

manage all aspects 

of grants 

management for 

HUD funds 

including 

budgeting, written 

agreements, 

reporting, 

compliance 

management and 

monitoring, 

advertising and fair 

housing.

Maintain effective 

government with 

optimal 

management and 

service practices, 

fully compliant

with federal 

programs

13



Recommendations

1. De-Obligate and Appropriate $17,950.83 from previous years

2. Approve our Fourth-Year Annual Action Plan with the Appropriations as presented

3. Council Authorization for City Manager to submit the Fourth-Year Annual Action 
Plan to the Department of Housing and Urban Development

14



Department of Development
Tevya Griffin – Director

15



Thank You

16



 

 

 

 

 

 

R-3 
 

 

 

 







����������	
������������������������������	��������	����	���������������������	����������������� !��������������������"�������������#�	����������	��������#�$�����������#�������������������������"������������������
���	�����	��	�������������	��������	���	�����������#�	���������������	���#��	�������
���	���
�#��$���	������%��$��	����$���������������	���#��	����������$�������������&��"������&����������
��������	������'�����������������#��	���#%	�������%���$�����%���	�(���#$�������������	������#�����������������	���#��	�����#�	����������
����%����	�����
��	�
	�����	�������#$�����)����*��	��������#������%������������"�������������	�������	���#��	����������������	���#��	�����#�	��������%#������'	��������������	������
�������"��������%���	�(��#$�������������������&�'����������������%������#����		���&�������#�������#$�������%��$��	����$������%��$��	����$���������$����������	������
���������	������$�#���������#�	�������������	�������#�$������
���	���
�#��$������$���%��$��	����$���$���$�����������	���	$��������������	���#��	����$���������������'�������	��"�������������������	��	�����������$���$�������%�����������	���	$���$������������������������������������	��	��������������%��$��������$��������%	������������	$������
��������������%���������	�����������	���#��	����������+, &�������-.&����-!&����� &������/��+,�&����,� /��+,0&����0,!/��+,!&������/��+0�&����,�,/�+00&����.��/��+. &�����0�&��������-�/��+.�&����0� /��+.�&������!/��+.!&����..!/��+!�&������,/��+!�&���0, /��++-&����0��/��  ,&����-! ������������	����������������������#�$�	���	������������������	������������������������������������������$������������%���������	������������������%���������	��������$��"��%���������	��'�����	���������������"��	�����
1 23435617



�������� �	�
�������	�����������	���	��������	��	�������	����������

���������������� ���������� � �!����������
���!����������!�����
������� ���

"#$%	#&	'()*(+(,	-(./%	01202	3/%4.(#+5	"6,7.%)	82	9%+%),/	:)#;(5(#+5	,+$	<$=(+(5.),.(#+>	0120?8882	"#=7%+5,.(#+	,+$	%@7%+5%5	#&	*%+%),/	)%*(5.),)52-6%	9%+%),/	<55%=A/B	56,//	%5.,A/(56	,	4#=7%+5,.(#+	7/,+	(+	.6%	*%+%),/	,77)#7)(,.(#+	,4.	&#)	.6%	*%+%),/	)%*(5.),)52-6%	*#;%)+(+*	A#$B	&#)	.6%	4#C+.B	#)	4(.B	#&	%,46	*%+%),/	)%*(5.),)	56,//	7,B	4#=7%+5,.(#+	(+	,44#)$,+4%	D(.6	.6%7/,+	,+$	A%	)%(=AC)5%$	,++C,//B	,5	,C.6#)(E%$	(+	.6%	,4.2	-6%	*#;%)+(+*	A#$B	56,//	A%	)%FC()%$	.#	7)#;($%	A%+%&(.5	.#.6%	*%+%),/	,+$	,55(5.,+.	)%*(5.),)5	,+$	5.,&&	,5	7)#;($%$	.#	#.6%)	%=7/#B%%5	#&	.6%	/#4,/(.BG	,+$	56,//	A%	,C.6#)(E%$	.#5C77/%=%+.	.6%	5,/,)B	#&	.6%	*%+%),/	)%*(5.),)	.#	.6%	%@.%+.	7)#;($%$	(+	.6%	,4.23,46	/#4,/(.B	56,//	7,B	.6%	)%,5#+,A/%	%@7%+5%5	#&	.6%	*%+%),/	)%*(5.),)G	(+4/C$(+*	)%(=AC)5%=%+.	&#)	=(/%,*%	,.	.6%),.%	7,B,A/%	.#	=%=A%)5	#&	.6%	9%+%),/	<55%=A/B2	H+	4,5%	#&	,	$(57C.%G	.6%	I.,.%	J#,)$	56,//	,77)#;%	#)	$(5,77)#;%.6%	)%(=AC)5%=%+.2	K%,5#+,A/%	%@7%+5%5	(+4/C$%G	AC.	,)%	+#.	/(=(.%$	.#G	4#5.5	&#)L	M(N	,+	,$%FC,.%/B	.),(+%$	)%*(5.),)O55.,&&G	(+4/C$(+*	.),(+(+*	(+	.6%	C5%	#&	4#=7C.%)5	,+$	#.6%)	.%46+#/#*B	.#	.6%	%@.%+.	7)#;($%$	.#	#.6%)	/#4,/	%=7/#B%%5D(.6	5(=(/,)	P#A	)%57#+5(A(/(.(%5G	,+$	)%,5#+,A/%	4#5.5	&#)	.6%	*%+%),/	)%*(5.),)	.#	,..%+$	.6%	,++C,/	.),(+(+*	#&&%)%$	AB.6%	I.,.%	J#,)$Q	M((N	,$%FC,.%	.),(+(+*	&#)	#&&(4%)5	#&	%/%4.(#+Q	M(((N	4#+$C4.(+*	%/%4.(#+5	,5	)%FC()%$	AB	.6(5	.(./%Q	,+$M(;N	;#.%)	%$C4,.(#+2"#$%	8RSTG	>>	01?S0G	01?S028G	01?SSG	01?U8G	01?USG	01?UUG	01?88V28Q	8RS1G	42	UR8Q	8RU0G	42	1WSQ	8RU1G	42	UTVQ	8RUVG442	RWG	818Q	8RWTG	42	1U0G	>	0128?1XQ	8RWXG	42	XTQ	8RW1G	42	10VQ	8RWSG	42	S8SQ	8RWUG	42	80Q	8RWVG	42	WWVQ	8RV8G	42	10SQ8RV0G	42	0RTQ	8RVXG	42	S88Q	8RV1G	42	1VTQ	8RVSG	42	8RWQ	8RVUG	42	SSVQ	8RVVG	42	S0VQ	8RRXG	42	U18Q	0TTXG	42	8T8SQ	0T8UG	428X2

UYWY0T8V



�������� �	�
�������	���������	��	�������	�����������	���������

������������������������������� �!��������
��� ���������� �����
������� ���

"#$%	#&	'()*(+(,	-(./%	01202	3/%4.(#+5	"6,7.%)	82	9%+%),/	:)#;(5(#+5	,+$	<$=(+(5.),.(#+>	0120?8802	<55(5.,+.5	.#	*%+%),/	)%*(5.),)5@	%=7/#A%%52-6%	%/%4.#),/	B#,)$	56,//	$%.%)=(+%	.6%	+C=B%)	,+$	5%.	.6%	.%)=	&#)	,55(5.,+.	)%*(5.),)5@	6#D%;%)E	.6%()	.%)=5	56,//	+#.%F.%+$	B%A#+$	.6%	.%)=	5%.	BA	/,D	#&	.6%	(+4C=B%+.	*%+%),/	)%*(5.),)2	-6%	*%+%),/	)%*(5.),)	56,//	%5.,B/(56	.6%	$C.(%5	#&,55(5.,+.	)%*(5.),)5E	,77#(+.	,55(5.,+.	)%*(5.),)5E	,+$	6,;%	,C.6#)(.A	.#	)%=#;%	,+A	,55(5.,+.	)%*(5.),)	D6#	&,(/5	.#$(546,)*%	.6%	$C.(%5	#&	6(5	#&&(4%2G+	HC55%//	"#C+.AE	.6%)%	56,//	B%	,.	/%,5.	#+%	&C//?.(=%	,55(5.,+.	)%*(5.),)	D6#	56,//	5%);%	(+	.6%	#&&(4%	#&	.6%	*%+%),/)%*(5.),)2G+	,+A	4#C+.A	#)	4(.A	D6#5%	7#7C/,.(#+	(5	#;%)	8IEIJJE	.6%)%	56,//	B%	,.	/%,5.	#+%	,55(5.,+.	)%*(5.),)	D6#	56,//	5%);%	,./%,5.	#+%	$,A	%,46	D%%K	(+	.6%	#&&(4%	#&	.6%	*%+%),/	)%*(5.),)2<+A	4#C+.A	#)	4(.A	D6#5%	7#7C/,.(#+	(5	8IEIJJ	#)	/%55	56,//	6,;%	,.	/%,5.	#+%	5CB5.(.C.%	)%*(5.),)	D6#	(5	,B/%	.#	.,K%#;%)	.6%	$C.(%5	#&	.6%	*%+%),/	)%*(5.),)	(+	,+	%=%)*%+4A	,+$	D6#	56,//	,55(5.	.6%	*%+%),/	)%*(5.),)	D6%+	6%	)%LC%5.52<//	,55(5.,+.	)%*(5.),)5	56,//	6,;%	.6%	5,=%	/(=(.,.(#+5	,+$	LC,/(&(4,.(#+5	,+$	&C/&(//	.6%	5,=%	)%LC()%=%+.5	,5	.6%*%+%),/	)%*(5.),)	%F4%7.	.6,.	M(N	,+	,55(5.,+.	)%*(5.),)	=,A	B%	,+	#&&(4%)	#&	%/%4.(#+	,+$	M((N	,+	,55(5.,+.	)%*(5.),)	56,//	B%,	LC,/(&(%$	;#.%)	#&	.6%	"#==#+D%,/.6	BC.	(5	+#.	)%LC()%$	.#	B%	,	LC,/(&(%$	;#.%)	#&	.6%	4#C+.A	#)	4(.A	(+	D6(46	6%5%);%5	,5	)%*(5.),)2	",+$($,.%5	D6#	,)%	)%5($%+.5	(+	.6%	4#C+.A	#)	4(.A	&#)	D6(46	.6%A	5%%K	,77#(+.=%+.	=,A	B%	*(;%+7)%&%)%+4%	(+	6()(+*2	O#4,/(.(%5	=,A	=C.C,//A	,*)%%	.#	56,)%	,+	,55(5.,+.	)%*(5.),)	,=#+*	.D#	#)	=#)%	/#4,/(.(%52<55(5.,+.	)%*(5.),)5	D6#	,*)%%	.#	5%);%	D(.6#C.	7,A	56,//	B%	5C7%);(5%$	,+$	.),(+%$	BA	.6%	*%+%),/	)%*(5.),)2<//	#.6%)	%=7/#A%%5	56,//	B%	%=7/#A%$	BA	.6%	*%+%),/	)%*(5.),)2	-6%	*%+%),/	)%*(5.),)	=,A	6()%	,$$(.(#+,/	.%=7#),)A%=7/#A%%5	#+	,	7,).?.(=%	B,5(5	,5	+%%$%$2-6%	4#=7%+5,.(#+	#&	,+A	,55(5.,+.	)%*(5.),)E	#.6%)	.6,+	.6#5%	D6#	,*)%%	.#	5%);%	D(.6#C.	7,AE	#)	,+A	#.6%)	%=7/#A%%	#&.6%	*%+%),/	)%*(5.),)	56,//	B%	&(F%$	,+$	7,($	BA	.6%	/#4,/	*#;%)+(+*	B#$A	,+$	56,//	B%	.6%	%LC(;,/%+.	#&	#)	%F4%%$	.6%=(+(=C=	6#C)/A	D,*%	%5.,B/(56%$	BA	&%$%),/	/,D	(+	0P	Q2R2"2	>	0JS	M,N	M8NE	,5	,=%+$%$2-6%	*%+%),/	)%*(5.),)	56,//	+#.	,77#(+.	.#	.6%	#&&(4%	#&	7,($	,55(5.,+.	)%*(5.),)	6(5	57#C5%	#)	,+A	7%)5#+E	#)	.6%	57#C5%#&	,+A	7%)5#+E	D6#	(5	6(5	7,)%+.E	*),+$7,)%+.E	5(B/(+*E	46(/$E	#)	*),+$46(/$2"#$%	8PIJE	>	01?IT@	8PUJE	42	1S0E	>	0128?1I@	8PUVE	42	VJ@	8PU1E	42	10T@	8PUIE	42	I8I@	8PT0E	42	SIJ@	8PTVE	42	1UJ@	8PT1E42	1TJ@	8PTSE	42	IITE	>	0128?1I2V@	8PPVE	42	S18@	8PPPE	42	88I@	0JJ8E	442	SVUE	SVTE	S10E	S1V@	0JJVE	42	0V0@	0JJUE	42	T8V2

SWUW0J8T



 

 

REPORTS  
OF THE 

CITY 
ATTORNEY 

 

 









 
REPORTS OF THE 

CITY COUNCIL 
• COMMITTEES 

• INDIVIDUAL REQUEST 
• ANY OTHER COUNCILOR 



 

ADJOURN 

 
 


	ADP280B.tmp
	Rezoning of highland parcel
	HRHA vision 2030	
	What we have done
	The site
	Our proposal
	Our proposal
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	A Key piece of HRHA’s redevelopment strategy
	A Key piece of HRHA’s redevelopment strategy
	A Key piece of HRHA’s redevelopment strategy
	HRHA’s obligation to current residents
	HRHA’s Request

	ADPECF2.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADP28EB.tmp
	Spot Blight Public Hearing
	Housing in the City
	Housing Goals identified in �2028 Comprehensive Plan
	�
	Housing Strategies 
	Housing Strategies…continued
	Spot Blight
	Slide Number 8
	Spot Blight List 
	Score 59
	Score 57
	Score 53
	Score 57 
	Score 48
	Score 57 
	Score 55
	Score 56 
	Missing Links – Acquisition and Rehabilitation Program
	Thank you

	ADPD59F.tmp
	300 N. Main Street * Ronnieye L. Arrington * City Clerk * (804) 541-2249 * Fax (804) 541-2248
	Date:__ May 14, 2018
	Department’s Representative
	The notice shall appear with border. The cost is to be charged to 011.1101000.3600.000.000
	The print style should be as follows:
	Heading style - Future Bold, size 12 point

	NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
	EQUAL OPPORTUNITY/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION EMPLOYER

	ADP64B6.tmp
	NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
	EQUAL OPPORTUNITY/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION EMPLOYER

	ADP8094.tmp
	FISCAL YEAR 2018-19
	UGeneral Fund-011:
	USocial Services Fund-012:
	UCommunity Services Act Fund-015:
	URecreation Fund-035:
	USelf Insurance Fund-076:
	UAnti-Litter Fund-053:
	UCemetery Fund-003:
	USchool Operating Fund-014:
	USchool Textbook Fund-056U:
	USchool Cafeteria Fund-057:
	USewer Operations Fund-040U:
	USewer Maintenance Fund-041:
	USewer Bond Fund-043:
	UStorm Water Fund #1-048:
	UStorm Water Fund #2-049U:
	UHRWTF Fund-032U:
	UCapital Projects Fund-071:
	UEconomic Development Fund-075:




